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oUTeT &d 3MIET (1. D A AIRIAT aIMfes ATENRUT JaNTAHAT JRATON F STUddT JFYUT AAEah
RGBT TFUoichl I>uIcTd AfAA, JFYUT dBFUel URAR I IR SAFIIT dHAIC JIid o
JRIEBCTTS FfGad TATITT dal SfATaIGel Toh JIGE |

ST T 3TTICT (&7, 2hT AT i AlET TN AFSTch! ATATHT UfeT (TN AT 90-92 auh! Jrafeicis
fareerauT J16T COVID R 31fefes Jaaieh! aualReh 316 Yeich dY dbdUoiict oReARDUA 3T Ul
3ol ABeT AUTh, TOFUGT 3196 AGE IATATA JTSInch! I UAUTE eddl coTelbaigd b SMBATS
U3CT AT U [IYaToM ATATHT SUHAT LA JRI36T THET §e, MBI ATRT ARAENTEBTS TATSIG
udal | ARES IAUGDIA &R of DIUGID! Yedidd JNAMET Bddt RfuoNd foraee 3M3eiaTedn!
B T IAUDI TONeN IRt ARRD 3166 AACARI s Hodidbal I [ALCTNUT Jgjgol aTedbieT IA
Jecafar yuia Ad g go® |

e e FIfTCT [AATDT AT 300 B.TA. I RQR% AT 368 B.UAT. A6 JTat AGeT o, AT
BT URSATUT 3Tl ayab! GeTolal 93% of afé &l | 2T [ URaAT JIqaNdh! §31R RIS 9.6%¢t
gl BRI JTat A&TaT aTEdhT I lfsTchad! A1 GIgi UIAUfEf JoTenT a5TR [RIATST 9.Y8 % ol ffeaial
BRI JTal ABA ol I IUANEATS 3136 ITTAoN I el Solledhl & | 3628 .U, I A
aueh! fA5h! doaUoich! SIARIID! Jdiferes &bl TR &l |

3136 I a¥ed! [ GlBT db ol al ol RIfCT [TUdh! 16 diccl §é! Yool JheT aTuddl B | IJeT
UfST ToIUaT AR RRAAE SRR IKDT UIC UIES |

ST R JaIIRIG] ST Uddl a6 §é1 Iachl, 3ol 3ol MIISToNaDe! o YoTan
STEIED! eIt JIe GaIIae I GaTl AfdT SicFaudiceddl PRI daT JUADT Ufel fAfAT 8158
DB | IIAT URARXAASAT BT oIl T f3loeT SR SIS URTIeT JIC, 310MfS SfeIaaI &Y I JIaay
AR JTRSATSAT JSTST AT Sl &i5Ichl DU 330l STl olulcTap! STfasIehl BUdN Igcd! Hydro
Power I fIgd AU cliSeldl WUG Fol CloIBIR SMID! 3cUGal Jlof Plant 18Tal
Jlof UEGal IR 3Rk Al quiar _RE 3cuigel den skt Jlef Adid ABad el & | &I
CIoABAHR A GoTd 3 RN A UIAIDI Ad BTl SloABAHR ICUIGHES I oluled e
UIMEIehUT Jdidel Jusion IR I_hT JURAR I DIIgdrd Uld qul Joqee oo JIRebl &al | IR
Aol IF aY &IfHAT 9000 .U, dicel df T I SeABAHR A [5h! JTof e fAganT &8 |

O1d a¥ Gulf Oil International &€ gof ferafed Plant, Process and quality audit ST¢ Jeqwe 18
GOl &1 RIcAE b ST AlfdTaT AU JIT JIRT IFYUT grade @1 formulation UTtd 8t<it I Synthetic
Product 83¢bT TIIT ATd AU DI MAIAD AIEIR Follechl [USAHT Alch! 3cUIGal JIat Adid ¥adhdl
U&Tol JTot Ufiagaiel ddUciict 3Mbal 3cUIcalas GOl dl ATUGUSHT AT AR B ITRIEDHT I AR
JUIRARD! §IG 3CUTCOTEh! fTfITd ATt IRDT SAMFEH | cadiet AJay &lfdrer Plant and Machinery
dB UaTENRES U 16 Siof AlSToll TaTeddT 81 | T 3MT30T [3aTaN Ry Jars ATIeTdd! SUIoTa
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gis aTuufe] JioTaN DIRIAE SiaTs foiReaR diloT gis aTs<Eal 3Tdbi aigeayul Product 1T & | Il
3T gfeg; ATUUST ATDTAT PORIAE G1aTs folRedR JioT gl aTegar 31ehi digcaqut Product 15T & | Iad!
3CUTG AT JTol SIRTGT RIS A T LI G RISNRIENE 15T SMAT I1MR STUTA SR AT [T JTG | TSI Ufrueit
BID! ATIAAINER JoaR MEIRDI B | TAAST BRI PITD! (3136 SADT AFYUT (ISTaH! [AIFHITN SI71R [FIAT
IR oIS & | AT A Y Foflet oI 15T LeTloe cToM3ol AISToleNs e TATEdmRIa! | AJSTE BIfH ST
IR SIGTDUDH! [A3TGa UahIReb (131 3cUIGHl JTat ABA gol I AT FCUTG D T IaDT AT JGaIehI
Benefits 1S do a1 TR STl 3CUTG oI ST (AT I61301 IheT gol 8l | Ao Arstal T A JoTAFaloerd
3MARIAD Lab IUBRUIES AIE JTo!, RATGDI[IIARIrenovation AT TH IR BRI FS IG5 DI B |

FAMACHT AR I (LRI JAIATEIGTh! foIfoTd AMALAD TISIRED fazh! JIot I ALl IS foraiur
ST JTof I AT forfeTd SMALAD Y5 FCI3aT aifT AR AlHET JAMRIST AW ATENUT JaiTed! NgTel
TS It ASTeNES AdUsel Jlot I TSI Ibd SabeTs J[chlon IR &Il IKTP! FUT Ibd HTI3ol ot
1:2 Right share 3 Tl A Jaelc Xachdl o 31U SEBON a1 fordgal UQT J1uds!
& | SEBON dc Radmd URdid Y5 Feu® ft Jauul i &g I JdUeal Jlof 8 |

Iy JATENRUT JaTaTe RAacd o718 olulcl od[d NI f1.abT quf Tanfeieddn Igor 1k NLOL Energy
Ltd T NLOL Synergy Ltd JeIua J1t ABEdH! & | 3t baUoigdal hRIAR Jlol cdlfe TAaA,
TR I S seifossahl BIES BAId Jlol ab IR B | TSP TERAD! SREIC ICAMRA 818
IJ 3M.E.FT 900 TeT TPIR fAh! JTof T1e fASEd! & | s db Jdid &l 2 Wheeler @1 amr
B! IR AZTDI 3MEot NLOL §10s a1 JFuuf Range @1 s21fe fa5ht JTof dts 310MfS sfeaanT &
| SR AT a¥apT Ifeqdt 3 ARSI To WB.UE. SIcT SeIUsy IR TSI 99 ARG TG, SMIGTon JTot
AT STUTHT B aTol MM T§ 800 .U, AFHD! SIcT SaifUsg Jlol 16l & | AT I JuUTforei
fAMARIHRUT I 364 3T fAfdiGal SNMFGHNdhl Adad Jomdd IR 30N SEIRD! URCATIEE |
IJ@BT I GULF international @t Product portfolio 9T ciaTedst I JFSbidldn 1A= oluTe! fafdieat
JsdBT dAfdadecd I AI5ES NLOL FIUSEIE &6 Jlet J3ard JIRABEDT B | AJeT MMM fEaian
3ol VS [T JTot ath Ul JUTMATAD J&AIT [T & |

ISR TOO FE TAH AT BIBRIEIE AIBGCAD! DBRIAR ASIGDIA A UAURIES b Jard
SAT3aT I IIRATSTAHT [oaf Brand Building b1 faféicel [hATb lUa 5150 & I AT chdUai chigel Ufts
TR B | IASNADBT TUES I aTsach! Brand Building o1 aoriEs o1ed I Aftet af i o1Redb Jerds
@1 Nepal Premier League (Cricket) T Janakpur Bolt a1 o1REeT Sponshorship I IGHI S |
a¥epT FARCAYUT ATAT JIYUT BIAIGS DT BICH [TARUABADT BICES A UAIGTTAT U IRDBT & |
IR JIday AFUGel JNRUTBT I I T J1R0T FIT FI BIIGSD! (AT Ufer A YAACAI Ieerd
JRDT B | A aY &1 FX AlTal BddT dauaitad! Theme T Judm Redefine your limit fTsuenr
& I AIMBETS SMCHIAE J1¢, Women power T8 IRRIRS A Ufdeal IR gal 31 dodUeiedl Brand
Ambassdor bl JUT olUIct difgeTl [3babe fEdTehl 3U dbldlal Bdal under 19 fediehT dtdlal J5 T
HEAICTTS foTITh J1TBT B | 3MRM & I Jddctiolct ISR AN AR I Jdl FHFoabe YNES e
GULF Brand, @aUcit I IAehT 3cUICAdh! ABRICIHD BId IFAR JTet dgd YJol [Ty fTudsT 8 |

ST G STl .



DTG AfET TYIT SMEST BIFAGR TAT DA ARG B Garal I performance 3GAR TRGRE
BT fSTSTRD D! UIRSITIND gles, JTof G [TTaoeh! oI TAcTah! JeAa2el chIIat JIat, &1 qalT ¢ rat
AIMAAED UGToT J1S, ToTRB ! hIieiaTal [AXAR JTot I motivate JTot il Joid URERIBUA folRedR
JIRIEDT B | MBS BISICIR TNl daiariad! driGerdT dfes; JTof I I3RS I&ahT &1 a<g [AHiaT Uata
TSt SARBES S RBREsIER, fBTsTdT datardl, RETR I FDITTAGBTS AlfAdT YeTel JTot Uab AlfeAdT
T fo1gh JRBI & | f751at GULF International IoT Jdieae 1R (3fdTeol AIfATTES UeTel JTof & |

JMADT AR ASTES 30Nee AF ay rafd 3M.8.00T2 IT3 T FIfHET 8620 B.UcT. [AFHI JTof c1gr
fSTecaT 81 | AT JAfTeN a¥ad! &I ASHITT TN 30% o i Al | AT URNT SIILAARIY UleT Aol
JqE AR IJI &l BT WMol Afad AFYUl Brefsion TR URDT 8 I Jdatol IR 31s Al
f& BIflTSTaN 31eTpU B aTSIRdDIeT 3T clferd UGl AT idTh IadhT 3 [AaAle I8l & | I
fHIETE Y BRAS TO TR W, ol Gol & JADT 8l | 30T ot TR DI YR For el I
I HMADBT ASTAEDD! BIAGAAGTHIT Th A& FIAA JTet BT T MGG SHEC B Bl |

INIREGT ARIGANARD,

I oY B! AMBIEE J5ATeTd JfATNDT fTferet 20 URARTE el RIR T 9.0Y68 YA FIITG
ST (STOTE, TSI B YLISToIeh! [oIfITaaisT) [AGRUTaT UIArd IR & | 3NN & ARRST 3%
JIATAETTS RS RXAPR IR XA JRIRG ol | AT o dFUoh Vol SHINSTaT URT 1ot Uol Ad [IaRUIED
I YIIAGSIIN UM AT & | JJDT A1 J5TTcTch ATAIDT ThaIE 3NTT AF JATAT UL HedhT A
UIAIAED AdAFHA JUS Fadhd J1R UIRd JIRIEggal & aical 3NN fATDT B |

S.no Fiscal Year Share Capital % Dividend
1|F.Y.69/70 20,292,200 40% 8,116,880
2|F.Y.70/71 24,371,900 20% 4,874,380
3|F.Y.71/72 24,371,900 10% 2,437,190
4[F.Y.72/73 24,371,900 20% 4,874,380
5|F.Y.73/74 26,842,500 25% 6,710,625
6|F.Y.74/75 26,842,500 40% 10,737,000
T|F.Y.75/76 29,753,200 30% 8,925,960
8|F.Y.76/77 29,753,200 10% 2,975,320
9|F.Y.77/78 29,753,200 35% 10,413,620

10(F.Y.78/79 38,758,500 30% 11,627,550

11(F.Y.79/80 48,514,900 30% 14,554,470

12(F.Y.80/81 60,718,900 25% 15,179,725

13[F.Y.81/82 72,862,680 21% 15,339,489
TG dT,

I oY Ul SIUSAIETS SMhal &5IdT RI0Td T oY 8B 3131 FeATeTdN kel 3M.3MEN A€le AoTElel U
1351 aér &Id1 fadd Partner, Retailer, Mechanics, OEM Partner, Projects, Industries,
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caa, DSE/PSE, 3Md7 3Ualichl I 3l JIYU JNTBDHES U AT Idd 3N & |
RO BIUGND! JJATAT of BIUSID! JaYD! RTFBDHT YA Ul AMMeT I8 JUdT I
BIUoNclTs A AFCAYUf I ITSCIHD ATIIERAST USTel JTot I AAEIST ARTINAGDATS UleT BT
BIf&ch EloIdIg R3S SONH RGIRJ U] AALN of GRedIJUAT ADIRIcIHD Uddl IdolcHD
JEA0T UTSGET Bl alcol ST [ALDT Bl | AR dBdUo Ul SAT3o] STUHT JSaa T &IfT Ul
A3 STUCH [FRAISTE SfABIAUfST SITHINIS ot Bl |

I JF>ATCTD AT AT TFUoiclls Jorel JYcAeT DU ANGIGRIST JTol olulet JIWBIRDT [AfdTeal
foTIToTBIST foTapIal, &t EfdusT &S, 4t oiuTeT Iech Uadoal, CDS and Clearing I ddUsiiadT Sfods
JIIRAIRIGT AT del IEADT [RABol S Uase ocb fA. qoT Sl Sb don AR
JAT RTS NIMB Ace Capital I TR fo7gs U U] &fdds 3R Udbe Jidal |

A1 BIFUSHDT HBEUSDHT JUST I8 U &I FRAIBIAGR T BIHARIES Ul Ufer Aed b
BIED EGIAIG UcToT I8! |

I>TATAD AlAID!T dBHEE
ot 31BUT AR AT
3redaet

olUTeT o gd 3N fod.



difaa ATENR 0T JSHTDY Joll

fAIY Q0T 10§ 109 T TADT A>dTcTad AfATeTDT 3T3 3N FGeD! (STl AR A TFUsiad! ATl
qIfes JATENMRUT JaTl STFAfArAd A, A, I LA SEIIHT [ATAFS 3UR BEABET JTol F3ol e
§a1 AUl IARREIGT FRIFHARB D! JURATIDHT AT SIGRIEl IR & |
Q. BT Gt 1AM, JaT I 2AGT:
fAT : Q0T AT 3NMRAal 39 J1d (A© IR, Q0Y), YWhaAR
I : [§@IeT 99:30 &
JATel © & LT3, Yordich, cifeiayR
Q. BAbTol Ay Jdi :
@) 3M.§.20C9 1T JsuIcTh JfATD! Ufddcal A BABA JRNI UIRd JTof |
) 311.d.20CA T I o1AT UA&Teh b Uldddol, 20T 3MRAE HAATGADI AIAAT I
311.9.20CA 1T I 3T fJa=UT I A 3rafEIep! so1¢ UdR f[IaRuT BeThed O Idichd JTof |
1) I bUsiicpl JgRID bauaiad NLOL Energy Ltd I NLOL synergy Ltd @b fafr
faRUTES AfRach! Bftbehd AT ARl BeThed JIR UIkd ot |
g) I>AIdd JlAADT 3C3 3 ol IHRA IR FANBIH 20 AT Sy AR ey
qen 3. ©,66,QT 100 TIIE NI (3rerid FebT §5febT 9.04268%)(SIAT =R 3 1ITG et
CADT DR YAISISIaR] fSAfTa) fAGRUIERT fSifoTa Tdidad JTof | (ULANAd dlol AWUR dFUGHDT
311.9.20C9 1T BT JATT 20T 3MATE FAAGAD! AT FSANIHD Jebl Y3 UeTel JTot I
TBUoict IAY M 9:Q FDHUE AR fGIIBIISTD! fOIfITd AFaTGEId (STehIIT IAarEad! ST

U TP [STAGHTAN IR PR AFATAT I FIolA AT JIUIGTAHT GlfeTsol)

§) DIUGT Ual 2063 I GWI 999 FAHIIA oI=AT UREUT Al FIBIRAA M.d.20T ITI
o8} PRIERD! AT §I§ AT URED G JTol deN foisidbl TR foTeri=ur Il |
(&TeTaret

ORAT UReIds Jdd 3 dcT uxard ICAN o forelfur vadt fordeier iU Goiddl UIRSIAdD
At UTCe 37EehT, A1 hauel Ul 20&3 I GBI 99(3) TSI SRIGTAlCT oAl URETD
L.3Ts. Tl RAUcY TIcs TdbI3ecac Jol forfehabl fAfd A0 I8N

T) JAATEIRUT ARREIGNED D! ABAEIE ATATCTHED IYfh JTol JFTGE |

®) fafaer |
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foveT yIad

@) IIF JTENRUT JATEIE UIRA Sioly RIR aTafi g T fIrdt 20TA 190 19Q I AN A’
JaTaTe JdATATDUA Fachd 875 &lcar SEBON 11 Racadich! fAfoTd UL aTuchl coduaiicp]
Q:Q 3IGUIdch! UG VIR forebial (1:2 Ratio, Right share Issue) ugarg urta §sfiepr
SIS UL JTof JTTSE |

[) AT diad RR Rachd I &S RIREIC U 57 giged! URdagd Radhd uRdrd
AIMRDT fEITT BIUoNad! IR, ST d gobl Yot g Jlof Yaceusl AAeel Jrof |
N siftreed 45, ST dst dem g U gt Otol X 3o JAd prfd! Al ddueiianT
USGEIUS qelT fSRIHATGAIHAT NAAD JATEIST ol [IARUIES TAR IS 47t ot AUSTCIRD!
BRI T 36 JNAIIAD fSTIde AIATESAA UL Jlat JAT NMAAD 3o B Jlat
JIRI3ST SALATHI SIGAR 36 DTS DAATS [OIITH! JTof aT BIACTS SXAARY YTl ot

Jarccs Afidiers guf Bua
3RS UeTat Jot |
) fafaer |
3. fafeEr |
J>AIcTd JfAID! MRS
hdUol Jfud

ATEIROT JIGol AFHGHAT ATATGA SMOIDIRT

9. QIAMIR (Urer=f) fTIeh JTREMIAT Al USRI dbdUoiddl Buie BIIfcTe, JTdd aida,
AURRAR, DIGAHATUSIA AN I GojdTocl DI ©R HUST 30N &af I Jarg] Uoies |
AARATETIER! Gfldl AR JXIT I GIATA Sifeieich! UGS I §oB |

Q. JURAT MUY IXAT JaT JTGToIah] fOlfdTd fSifE e JAXAT IGRIR Ut STEa ot
JaT AdIeTel gol & |

3. JATENRUT JT YLAISTGIchT T odUeiichl IR SIFRATT [ITehT Thldl fAifd 20T 106 192
3R 20TR 10§ 139 JFdT §oc, @ & |

8. JATENRUT JaTTehT Jdol I 3MAch [FaRUT INETGHD! Tl [ShATad ISt Iach! OGN
UoISol & |

Y. JARIRUT AT JTSGEN 3o HIARDD] SolbN ALIAD LA BFUoihl BURE
BRI, ATDA oTda, BT, BIACT JHAAA JFUD IRA (el Afhol & |

a&eey : forafaor oRidificel JoacEl U eI ST foraidal Jftipdd! BIic, ouTet
Id NI . D DHURE B, DA 8idal, BIYIYAI, DG dIc 36T §ol AaoEd AT
STTGTERIIDT ST IGRE & |

olUTeT o gd 3N fod.
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YRR, BTG

Uqer U
UAETGHEDT TT.vvvrrrrrrreeresssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssees P RG]0 = S
......................... DI SIS )| I
e AR

oUTeT & 3TICT f1. 3BT QOTR 106 139 T gol AIIAT s ATENUT JHTAT IUFARIDBT ST S IR
UHI YA U |

ddUell AT
(JSEBETAT YR JTEf AT YR U NfTaref BUSAT UL JTef Uot & 1)

olUTeT o gd 3N fod.



oluTe1 oJd 3TRIcT faifdresl fdifa 2o0ce Arer 3nfiae 39 ald
SIcTSucDT TIRIA! afas JTENRUT ST J>UTTTD
JTHIAD! AHAIC TEIET 37 3RV BHAR

AEISIGERT UG 3M.d.20CA [T BT
arfido f&1e X ufddca
IO FRIGOARD,

SNUTAT Td 31RICT . b1 I TIAT aIffcas ATEN=UT Aailan JgaoN g omedst Jaquf Aaersh
RGBT DbFUoichl I>TUIcTh AlHAA, AFYUT BIFUa URAR I IR SAFIIT dHAIC Jdid A
JRIEBEIS RIGD TN Tl fAAICTT TATH JIEE |

SIUTeT &Id STIIET (o721 {IBaTd &R ATTET oy A aich! AT UfaT [ING faoTd 90-92 ayd! ariers
fageruT J1ef COVID R 3nfefas JIadren! auaTaes 3169l Ucdids ay dogUoiial [oReaRBUdT 3Td UfheT
fEoT AB STUTh, ToIUoH 3166 AGE IATATHT JTSachl I UMAUM] Tdd cToTelhbaiad dilab SMBATTs
U3CT ABET Ul [ILaoTeT ATATHT JUST LA IRI3eT THET Fe, MBI ATR ARIRETTRDTS JATSIGa
Udal | MRS IAUGDIeT GRA of doaUaiadl Ucdds Il vdal dheiuoNd s sm3geedn!
B I A oMol it ARIRD 3136 AAGARIT oS Jorichal I fALCTNUT JTgjgol eIt I
Jccaia quid A1 g §oB |

JfAET afaT RIfHCT fATDT e 3Q0 .U DT Q% 3rifd 3698 .ual. RABE JTet JbeT arll, AT
farsht URGAIUT JIITell aNeh! JATGla 93% o &fé Al | AT fAf>h UREATUT JTIaaNeh! a5 [FIATAT 9.6%aeT
gis BIRIGT JTol JA&TdT STUdh! I GIf3Tchbab! BIdH GIZHT UIAUrE] ATl §3TR [RIATAT 9.Y8 % DI f3ieaial
BIRIGT JTcl ABeT ool I SUCIREIATS 318h 3CeTAlond I JIfdcl Jolluchl & | 3628 .U, I AA
aueh! 56! dodUoiichl SARRID! Jaifeias skt URaAuT &l |

3166 I ¥l JG ollbT b dol Al alol BIfCT [T 16 dloal §& Yool JhaT Ul B | AJeT
UfSl SoFUeh AR LA IR I&DT UIC IS |

ST AR JARIITEIGIoD! 3N Bdd Ak §él IaahI, T GoTl AMAIGTIED D! oI YT
HMSIZDT fEARIIAST JTef gamare= I gell AfaT Sfraudicedd! BRIAR qoll JuAoT ufer fAfa asa
DI B | AT URRANS FIfTet Nl T f3leal §3TR &S URdIal JIC, 310NfS aféadh! Bl I JTddy
AR JIRATAA JSAT BIHAT Gl &i5Icbl DU 3MM3ol [T olUlcTch] A=Al BUAT Igcd! Hydro
Power I fAgd fAGRUT STSaldN JUA Gol SIoABAHR SRIT! 3cUIGal Jiol Plant ST8Tal JTol Ufdagar
JR 3IGAR JreTTs Quiar RS 3culal dal 56t DTl Jdd AheT STUdh! Bl | &I SToIBaIR S [T
3 dfgal
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AR U IJ Qo CloABIR  3CUGHES I olUld fEgd  UIRIBRUT  Jdider  3Uall
7 JIR IID! JPURGR I DGl Ul i Joge It JRGI Ba | AR BRI
I IF dY AlfeTlel 9000 ®.UcA. dicel dfe d I SloABAHR I AR Jlol e foedT 8l |

O1d @y Gulf Oil International §I€ gof forIfaid Plant, Process and quality audit STc Jeqw o8
GOl o IGARD Tachabl Alfdial AU AT JRebl JAFUUl grade @I formulation Ut ol
SyntheticProduct &bl ST AdId AT B SARAH YAiER Sollechl JUSH Al 3cUIGal JIet
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fSTecET 81 | AT JAfeHeN a¥adT &I ASHIGT T 30% o §ig Al | AT URSNT JILTAIAY UfeT Aol
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S.no |Year Revenue From Operations | Cost of Operations/Sales Gross Profit
1|FY 2077.78 960,672,584 661,455,604 299,216,979
2|FY 2078.79 1,245,187,002 865,690,343 379,496,658
3|FY 2079.80 926,660,835 685,506,024 241,154,811
4|FY 2080.81 1,175,461,170 824,417,765 351,043,405
5|FY 2081.82 1,352,784,783 947,675,952 405,108,831

1,352,784,783
,245,187,002
,175,461,170
960,672,584 26,660,835 947,675,952
5,690,343
61,455,604
496,658 405,108,831
1276,979 o
,154,811
FY 2077.78 FY 2078.79 FY 2079.80 FY 2080.81 FY 2081.82
= Revenue From Operations == Cost of Operations/Sales e Gross Profit
S.no Year Profit From Operations Profit Before Tax Net Profit for the Year Earning Per Share (EPS)
1|FY 2077.78 59,959,607 37,608,008 55,947,439 188.04
2|FY 2078.79 71,956,472 43,143,143 35,038,085 117.76
3(FY 2079.80 50,251,128 7,712,143 8,053,078 13.26
4(FY 2080.81 92,432,183 57,223,502 45,805,394 62.87
5|FY 2081.82 89,953,607 57,617,637 45,867,987 62.95
92,432,183 89,953,607
71,956,472
59,959,607
55,947,439 57,223,502 57,617,637
50,251,128
43,143,143 45,805,394 45,867,987
37,6
35,038,085
7,712,143
188.04 117.76 -7,83 2 62.87 62.95
FY 2077.78 FY 2078.79 FY 2079.80 FY 2080.81 FY 2081.82
H Profit From Operations u Profit Before Tax ® Net Profit for the Year Earning Per Share (EPS)

STl od 3Tl .



S.no Fiscal Year Share Capital % Dividend
1|F.Y.69/70 20,292,200 40% 8,116,880
2(F.Y.70/71 24,371,900 20% 4,874,380
3|F.Y.T1/72 24,371,900 10% 2,437,190
4(F.Y.72/73 24,371,900 20% 4,874,380
5[F.Y.73/74 26,842,500 25% 6,710,625
6(F.Y.74/75 26,842,500 40% 10,737,000
T|F.Y.75/76 29,753,200 30% 8,925,960
8|F.Y.76/77 29,753,200 10% 2,975,320
9(F.Y.77/78 29,753,200 35% 10,413,620

10|F.Y.78/79 38,758,500 30% 11,627,550
11|F.Y.79/80 48,514,900 30% 14,554,470
12|F.Y.80/81 60,718,900 25% 15,179,725
13[F.Y.81/82 72,862,680 21% 15,339,489
Dividend Distribution
15,179,725
39,489
10,737,000
8,116,880
ER AP A s“& @«b ’.\“\’\(\ & ﬁ«q I
TR SR AP & &S ¢ &S g

(J) ARG qa Soarifted URRFARNEIC BHIUoND! DPRISIRES oot 3L UMD 5T¢ JDT FAID!
faaur :
fGYaa foTd DR AUCRA ATSI{D! [AfdIGa RIRDIATUD! Gog, CIAAN Ul &I FXI bl
UCTf ! YdRT FCUIGD SRS I B, Iobal, RIS, WIICTEIST Udd 310 3T IAED JJ
JcToal Sechl hIRUT Uedich UcT 3loaxited d51Rkd Base Oil @l Hod Ubedl JIfARIcT Ul

STt &d 3IIIcT fed.
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URddel aTSIEDIST BN 3R [Iol JIEDI & |

It 3b BIUSTD! BRIGREITS I JTot 31! X AV SToih! dhot O faifd forrat I
JIUIRGR UG (Gl fafdieal RbRIdTah! dlfsicbocd 3T &4l a1 | AfsicbogAch! JUIRAehl
JAFTCEIT (STASTSDBI JIAT 31T ST ARBIRDT dol RBIAADT [STooI0T Bl | AF
JfHET AT ATH COO Tcel afe TPt AfTDeCH ST UeTed SMed JRD! [Fa=uTet
UfST AfSDoCID! AR TSI IRMDT GAIEE |

31T 3_AR JToTeh! SIUTGTAN &fAUaDT Electric Vehicle @1 §@&1 Ji1oT I UdcTol UfeT & 31f&eT d
1ol BRI JATIATETST TBUIST AJDT IR BT T6¢ IEIBRDT & |

(O URdGa AR 81U AT Tle] AUD! JUIRE I SARIDT AFTGEI A>TIID AlTADT
B[R -
I 3M.d. Q0TR IT3 JT 860 B.UA. fA5HI I AsdIAST Jobl 5. Y DHUS &C AW Fol G
IR BPRER I>AICTol 35 IZMDIGT Q0T HAUT AAGA AT ddl QG .U
qifScbocy sl [AIGRUT ouchl & |
I AFAGEAT 3196 [IIJd a1 dct UIgd J1REDI B :

311.d. 20TA T2 Y BRIshdd! Rafd :
anffep gy Q0TA ITY I Al DRIhIARID! XA :

TBFUGHCY 311.d. Q0TI 1T T 3MBai T RIS JTo! BIESEATaT AT TRt 4R TR BUST J1Q 3MeB

BT R RS oI BRIFEHES BIAlcaoia caTgdh! R Al Brfbdiadd! Ferd JFas(

&I IR YIS UIREDI B |

9 JfHeT YD HXYA FUCAEAT SARIT olUTcIh! AT Gl URSAUIST AT BddH WU ol
Transformer oil @7 3cUIGal PRAIGTAHT B J1RTDI & | Plant ARE J1R Installation ueard
Q0T U ARSI &1 FUTGHT TAT[A5H 5 INMRAT | STUTADT Gl ol Transformer fSiditar I oiuret
eI UIRIBRUTCTS Jdd 8 ARSI Q00 B.UCT. doel §fd B it JGH Fad! A
foTsTEoal 3UATOT UL Bl 3CUIGOIdh] JJURARAN gadb aTs Jol AT JIR3Gae! Al
UMY fo1ufer 8% sTgcayuf Sucieercnl JUdM el Jpos | A1 AJEE SCAMRT o7 AT ay
Transformer oil @ AT 5B T6T 9000 B.BA. dfe fATDHT B |

Q O a¥f uculen o RfigeYer oYt JRWMT 8 I IAST A GBI DBIUSIdI
UGS 3166 §6130l & | oIId  JMUfY  Joidheian fAfdical Y  RcsIcIgoars
foloTgoD! foldled  foloil BRUBBA! §RM! Potential 313U Il Jlet olAfbIaiet
uRadet J1R o1l RiceYex 1Y Jicf IheT BT 8 | URAdd o RBcedeias
JAADT BT IR IFDT T TSRS D BIRUT Ul FIfST AT a¥ 3603 .U AT JTat JgTa

olUTeT o gd 3N fod.
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et & |
I AV D! 3Tah! aTgcayuf o abl SUN o FUaiel [IRI I Bdh YA alfeabecA §Tus DUCKHAMS
JoTH! Jgp uLard omrerdt Toll Blending J1R 3t §USWT oiuTet fXerd Distributor g
3h SIUSHI ARSI [I5h JMRIFD! IARDT SR [AARUT JTat JheT HYdDT B | AT
JgpNIaIC A& THAT To .U [AZH IR TII18TT 99 TARA TG olhT JTol ABA HTEdh]
Bl | 3% Ibdl Bl SACAIST SN T 3h SIUSH Mol IR RIAT I URSATT TET3S
GTOTHT TBFUGHDY fSIfHTT SbferUdh 3N AT JUSAT SRUR LA TIol 3ol JfARTT & |

II q¥ IRT SUTAICTTS Bdhag JUAT Ik JIbal el Event srefd Nepal Premier
league Cricket & Janakpur Bolt & J& Sponshorship J1REdbT 8 | I¥et &&il Brand
YagolcTs &R BT UIATUD! & 3 3186 ifsadian Janakpur Bolt & 3urll Jaia Biaeret
JoTdT JOTedl AMel YOI & |

Training oo fAfeTd T 9 o A, TR Yagal ab 9 ofli, Customer care @b 9
qAT §31R T f5hT daardt 2 J1R Y oIl (ITh! J1RE] & |

GULF International JoTh! GBI © BIFER el BAHARNIGICT SeaANST IaID!
dIfeiaicpT Ufgell Phase URT JTgl 816! & |

I a¥ ddUchicp! JdaioeT afe Ak gof Product o11S SleaRIeY 57k GULF @1 A
Product @ aildT I Design JAfRd oIl S57TRaN IheTdgddd URddel Jiot JbeT EddT & |
FSTRETE [T 92 aY &\ TARAD! Uiy Design 3 SiaTad! 10T 31136 ATE dicol &g
dicTat Ard IRDIA 3capte ot Design T a1l color @7 SR A Marketing and
Branding GafaKIgS®! IRoTAIIICTTS Jhaidl Jdds URddel Jiet JbeT el &l |

e ayf 3131 il el URESToNaDeD! Gl A s JeT3al Ay JTEN=uT Ja
JdUca IR AEIE AdAFAT JUSAT Ut Mandate 31U Jaalced forebIrat Right
share issue JTel Raddicd! (3T foTdcaT feudnT 8 |

I INAT DIUoiial [ARIY ATENRUT JTEIE AdATIId BUST Uitd Mandate 315U 3ThaH
quf IaIfdrcadn aua! 3fecd AR Q oIl Subsidiary dUeh WieTdsT B | I 0TIAD rEcaddT
BFUGNFBD! 33l TYEBAT Jlof cbieT TbFUab! AT I 3 Jhg Jlal AL Jlol 8 |
Jfren aian Joquf fAzhl Bwafarigs I Ad Distributors &3cms Motivation Jieiaor farferd
DUBAI, UAE @I &1a1uT JIRISEhI 19l | AfieT avcdl [kl URaun Al dhiefeie 3cATAd
3TUTD! URUIAATS Ufel DR &S Add oTol Alhos |

Jfrenm a¥am GULF International AoTaeT J&bIIa &I fdfdteet Distributors T ST
JNEdmaBes Formula 1 car race 3fedoraehl Singapore Grand Prix @7 faifara
Singapore X Indian Premier League @1 Chennai super king @1 JcTap! foifdra
Chennai g1aTuT JIRIEasT RRAY |

GULF International & alifaics JUd AdUool J1RbI [Afdieal dugus! Plant, Process and
Quality audit T2aTd @aUsicls Synthetic oil ST&aT AFUT lubricants 3cuTGal JTel
31l f&e formulation UaTer JIRBT & | AJoT Plant @1 guf &idiarat oo It diga
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JTofed! A1 3eUTEaT HATCARY Tol3E STACT ST LG JFADT T TSR YATURf BT
Jied IRt JTel ARAT [RATIES |

R I, A FA[d T 3o BRIGS A YRXADIAN & JAAL JMRED! & |

affes af Q0T IT3 T AT STl DIRIHIRD :

DTS 3.4, Q0T IT3 T Bl e RIS JTof DBISTGAIDT JrA Ut SR TR BT IS

3D BIACTS oRGAA ¢, foTdel oiall BRIFARS BIlfcadcTd FATLD! & |

9 U q¥Dr (AT XY TG Bl A db Jdalod BASIR segment DI JUST
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Q TR 3Ipi digcayuul drfael JUST Synthetic product FB®I 3cuigeidr fafard Gulf oil
international o fERUT DRI AUGUSD! Uletonl Jlai Dedicated @w Vertical tank
&3 Blending kettle / filling machine 3TsTel JTof I&chT & | A B 1A oluict od
NI fILAIAR ot ufel Grade @1 Lubricants 3curger JTet JeidT &ol & |

3 I oy BRAGID! Lab 91T digeayuf I oigon testing equipment Cold Crank Simulator
oy O & | (I UfIdGel auR g5aieT Jdd United states of America aTe 31 o1
STSTGIITRARBEDT &) | A AF af 36 Q T AISIHT DR lab testing BT AT 3MaAD
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1T fAITARY lubricants testing facility I LAB Jdid gof & |

8 31691 I BFUHDI JRAATS eI JIe, BRITGTIAD! Renovation Bddt 3o
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y  Oday 8 g Ulathat QDY Project Sales fASToT d q datardt foreh JIof c16 feTSean
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JIREdT Trainer &Ts I d¥ 9000 TARBATS Training el Uol a6l Jd UcTal JNRET
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REAR I ADITTARD IGMDI Bol |

Q I dY chdUoiicl ofall X AT Retailer Scheme SRS TRTED! & I AT IMReT JRAAT
3ol &I fARaT & |
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GREIICINIEESGT IR

99  BIAIFH Ul Gl IXATI Jlai oI AhRAFED! sAfeep! cIaAN IF a¥ GULF India @or
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A

3

amana 1 NLOL §Ussle Battery @F @oRidR Jlot al 36 dgol olidideidd! Urifted §Ius
Jo1 JIRDBI Tl a 30N JfEAZLD! & |
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ol T Rapr3 151X 2N UTST SIUTGAT STINTSAT U=IToT JTef fderel JTR 3Iand RS & |
93 A 316 AR TR UegonT BRiES IS 3MSed! & I A ay Ufal JTol e & |

() DI EANOTD a1 SATANAD AT :
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JFEGE BINIH IADT B | Al a¥a U 2 i OEM/Project 3186l IheT aEddT I AT gadl TR
JATUTAT GTATE UfeT ST SO f&oTah! folfoTd APIRICHD Ao Aol UeTel IR B | oI JTay(
D1 BIUNDT [AfdTea

INENOTHE T ATAND BIUSIES AJTDT [ABh Jhgel Ufsl BIUsd! FEIID CATANAD Ua
I Jddct] [AXAR HSIGD! & ool YMUIG JIE8 I IS 3Mboll B Jdgiol I BRIER
AT ST AdTd AT JREDT & |

(8.) J>TTcIcD ATAMAST STEDT FIWBR I JIo! BT
I JfHET Ay AcTohdl SATH AREY JM5Y Sl dbeIe Udfefticd Jlol AsdTcidbad! BUT
ot ga UG 3IfcT I>AIcTabeb! JUAT fGIth §ol JTUch! &

(q) PRIERATS 3R Ul G HIRD
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BNl PRITRATS 3R Ulol g BRIFS foidal TAIIHA I8 &al |
q) AT TR URUE gD D! AFATIHAT Gol Tl I fOITRDEIC TS ST §[d UGTal JMal
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s Joalct SAARD |
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I 3MEE, JIRIFAT bfals |

3)  Qcll JATAIDI ¥R &1 gol Sifoifead I IIAT AlSbocd JMATdbdIeT SGaIted IAIA ol doedl

Ucrf T gical gigans AAAISI6! Ol ordlgol [FAh! TBIRUT 3cUcal gof URIILIdT STt g
THIUoNTHI STl GITFATGIA JedIaT 3R UIRGD! §oB |
(8) AT UG URIAGSTSN G0l DBAT 8 AIBUR  A>TUTAD AN ERUT
311.9.20TA ITR <bT oIAl UAGUT UfACaIdN chdUoiichl Alded BRISRD] A A SRATDI AAeT
fRTuviiaTaes Ufdehet fRTuut a1 | o1RAT UKIET0T URIACSIAN 3ecilAd JIBIAES dllicadel Jioi cATIATS
S forcerel &S ABLDT & |

(37) TSN SSWIS JTot RIBIRY JNREDT ID
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AI ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Kathmandu, Nepal

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

NEPAL LUBE OIL LIMITED (GROUP)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Nepal Lube Oil Limited and its
subsidiaries (“the group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at Ashad 32,
2082 (July 16, 2025), and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material aspects the
financial position of the group as at Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), and its financial performance and the
cash flows for the year ended in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSS).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSA). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ICAN's
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements. |

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended on Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025). These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Physical Verification and Asset Coding of
Property, Plant, and Equipment (PPE)

The group holds a significant amount of
Property, Plant, and Equipment (PPE) on its
balance sheet. However, during the audit, it

We reviewed the management's rationale for
not conducting physical verification and
assessed any compensating controls in place
to ensure the accuracy of PPE records.

We performed alternative audit procedures,

Auditor's Report NLOL (FY-2081/82) Page 1 of 5
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

was noted that the physical verification of PPE
had not been conducted, and asset coding had
not been implemented. The lack of physical
verification and coding presents a risk of
misstatement in the consolidated financial
statements as there may be unrecorded or
inaccurately recorded assets, and the potential
for existence or completeness issues is
increased.

- PPE represents a material balance in the
consolidated financial statements, and any
misstatements could significantly impact
the group's financial position.

- The absence of periodic physical
verification increases the risk of errors,
loss, or misuse of assets, and it limits the
ability to detect impairments or unrecorded
disposals.

- Asset coding is important for tracking and
identifying individual assets; without this,
there is a heightened risk of
misclassification or incomplete records,
which may lead to incorrect depreciation or
impairment calculations.

- The issue may also affect the accuracy of
insurance coverage and the adequacy of
asset safeguarding controls.

including sample-based testing of PPE
additions and disposals, to verify the existence
and accuracy of recorded assets.

- We conducted physical verification of sampled
property, plant and equipment, after the
reporting date, reconciled the balances and
ensured the assets exists in working condition
to derive economic value addition to the group.

- We inspected key documents such as
purchase invoices, maintenance of records,
and other evidence supporting the existence
and condition of PPE.

- We assessed the adequacy of management's
intemal controls over PPE and asset tracking,
considering the lack of physical verification and
asset coding.

- We reviewed the group's depreciation policies
and tested their application to ensure that
assets were being depreciated appropriately in
the absence of specific asset coding.

- We evaluated the group's disclosures on PPE
in the consolidated financial statements to
ensure they provide sufficient information
regarding the physical verification and asset
coding processes, or lack thereof.

Accounts Receivables

As at the reporting date, the group had account
receivables that were subject to litigation. The
litigation of the cases has been concluded by
the competent authorities.

The assessment of recoverability of receivables
under litigation involves judgment, including
evaluation of legal outcomes and potential
impairment under applicable financial reporting
standards. The favorable . decisions and
subsequent realization significantly affect the
balances of account receivables. Given the
financial significance and judgment involved,
we considered this area to be a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Obtaining confirmations and reviewing legal
correspondence regarding the status of
litigation and judgments delivered.

- Inspecting evidence of realization of substantial
portion of such account receivables, including
bank receipts and settlement documentation
during the year.

- Assessing the adequacy of management's
disclosures relating to litigation and receivable
recoverability.

Based on the audit procedures performed, we

found management's assessment of recoverability

of receivables under litigation, and the related
disclosures, to be reasonable.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The management of the group is responsible for the other information presented in the Nepal Lube Oil Limited
Annual Report 2081/82 (2024-25) together with the consolidated financial statements. This report is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or,
except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of
the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when
it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of the group is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such intemal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using
the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Govemance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:;

= [dentify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemnal control.

= Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's intemal control.

Auditor's Report NLOL (FY-2081/82) E-mall : ca.alassoclates@gmall.com Page 3 of 5
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= Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s intemal control.

= FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a malerial uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concem.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control
that we identified during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemnance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor 's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter, or when, in extremely rare circumstances we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON THE OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

a. We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. The financial statements including the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash
Flows including a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory notes have
been prepared in all material respect in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2063,
and they are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company; and the accounts and
records of the Company are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

E-mall : ca.alassoclates@gmail.com

Auditor’'s Report NLOL (FY-2081/82) Page 4 of 5
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AX ASSOCIATES Firm Registration No: 1062

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS PAN: 617956028
Kathmandu, Nepal

c. To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our
audit, we observed that the business of the Group was conducted satisfactorily, and the Group's
transactions were found to be within the scope of its authority except reported in this report.

d. We did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the board of
directors or any director or any office bearer of the Group has acted contrary to the provisions of law
except reported in this report or caused loss or damage to the Group or committed any
misappropriation of the funds of the Group.

e. We have not come across any accounting fraud, so as far as it appeared from our examination of the
books of accounts.

COP No: 1174
UDIN: 250928CA01723BF3ES
Date: 25 September 2025

Auditor’s Report NLOL (FY-2081/82) E-mall : ca.alassoclates@gmall.com Page 5 of 5
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As on Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Figures in NPR
Particulars Note No. 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets:
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 212,971,435 203,412,845
Capital Works in Progress 5 - 4,194,855
Right of Use Assets 5 2,836,958 2,876,848
Prepayments & Other Advances 7 - -
Deferred Tax Assets 8 - -
Total Non-Current Assets 215,808,393 210,484,548
Current Assets:
Assets Held For Sale 5 45,916,057 -
Inventories 9 279,557,344 218,033,268
Prepayments & Other Advances 7 54,662,001 39,618,690
Financial Assets 6
Trade & Other Receivables 445,050,880 368,647,059
Other Margins/ Deposits 6 1,314,929 1,362,638
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,666,102 23,086,264
Current Tax Assets 8 8,663,386 13,819,354
Total Current Assets 847,830,698 664,567,273
Total Assets 1,063,639,090 875,051,821
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share Capital 10 72,862,680 60,718,900
Retained Earnings 274,348,828 245,824,121
Other Component of Equity 76,096,724 69,191,211
Total Equity 423,308,232 375,734,232
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities:
Financial Liabilities 11
Loans and Borrowings -
Trade & Other Payables - -
Employee Benefits Liabilities 12 47,915,418 39,478,588
Lease Liability 13 1,710,605 1,705,208
Other Non-Current Liabilities 131 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 8 11,568,903 13,301,916
Total Non-current Liabilities 61,194,927 54,485,712
Current Liabilities:
Financial Liabilities 11
Loans and Borrowings 401,652,033 306,935,406
Trade & Other Payables 77,054,610 61,608,676
Employee Benefits Liabilities 12 23,976,959 29,194,251
Lease Liability 13 1,322,587 1,302,087
Other Current Liabilities 131 14,074,031 6,073,557
Provisions 14 61,055,712 39,717,900
Current Tax Liabilities 8 - -
Total Current Liabilities 579,135,932 444,831,876
Total Liabilities 640,330,859 499,317,589
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,063,639,090 875,051,821
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. As Per Our Report of Even Date
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
As on Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Figures in NPR

Particulars Note No. 32.03.2082 31.03.2081

Revenue From Operations 15 1,352,784,783 1,175,461,170
Cost of Operations/Sales 16 (947,675,952) (824,417,765)
Gross Profit 405,108,831 351,043,405
Other Operating Income 17 9,520,597 7,138,748
Selling & Distribution Expenses 20 (259,876,702) (217,630,348)
Administrative & General Expenses 21 (58,000,169) (41,119,215)
Other Operating Expenses 22 (7,018,558) (7,000,406)
Profit From Operations 89,734,000 92,432,183
Finance Cost 23 (33,145,716) (38,186,859)
Other Income 24 783,597 2,978,178
Profit Before Tax 57,371,881 57,223,502
Income Tax (Expenses)/Income: 8

- Current Tax (15,195,462) (9,530,407)

- Deferred Tax 3,488,060 (1,887,701)
Profit From Continuing Operations 3 45,664,479 45,805,394
Profit/ (Loss) on Discontinued Operations(net of tax) - -
Net Profit for the Year 45,664,479 45,805,394
Other Comprehensive Income:
Other Comprehensive Income that is subsequently not reclassified to profit or loss

Actuary gain/(loss) on Defined Benefit Obligation 349,676 (11,585,584)

Revaluation Gain on Land & Building 8,310,883 12,035,951

-Income Tax Relating to Components of Other Comprehensive Income (1,755,047) (90,239)
Total Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax 6,905,512 360,128
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 52,569,991 46,165,523
Earning per Equity share

Basic (NPR) 25 62.67 62.87

Diluted (NPR) 25 62.67 62.87

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Arun Kumar Chaudhary Karan Kumar Chaudhary

As Per Our Report of Even Date

CA Ayush Nepal

Chairman MD & CEO A.l. & Associates
Bijay Bahadur Shrestha CA Nagendra Sah Dhruba Prashad Aryal
Director Director Director
Shila Chaudhary Niranjan Neupane Anil Basnyat
Director Director Director
Date: Ganga Raj Bhattarai

Place: General Manager
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
As on Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Figures in NPR

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit for the Year 45,664,479 45,805,394
Adjustment for: Non-Cash Items & Non-Operating items
Income Tax Expenses for the year 11,707,402 11,418,108
Depreciation/amortisation on PPE,ROU,Investment Property & Intangible Assets 17,471,550 7,311,572
Finance Cost on Leases 329,096 335,265
Revaluation loss charged to profit or loss 249,829 -
Finance Income (783,597) (2,978,178)
Finance Cost 28,762,748 34,329,340
Prior Year Adjustment (84,706) (2,301,222)
Adjustment for: Working Capital Changes except cash & Cash equivalent
Increase / Decrease in Inventories (61,524,076) (2,650,450)
Increase / Decrease in Prepayments & other Advances (15,043,310) (11,601,563)
Increase / Decrease in Trade & other receivables (76,403,821) 18,278,296
Increase / Decrease in Deposits 47,710 244,407
Increase/Decrease in Current Loan & Borrowings 54,523,435 (38,775,482)
Increase/Decrease in Trade & Other Payables 15,445,934 (1,950,282)
Increase/Decrease in Current Employee Benefits 3,569,214 7,086,807
Increase / Decrease in other Liabilities 8,000,474 (7,114,456)
Increase/Decrease in Provisions 21,337,812 (2,076,083)
Cash generated from Operations. 53,270,173 55,361,475
Finance Cost on Working Capital Loan (26,702,771) (34,329,340)
Payment of Rent (1,764,000) (1,400,000)
Income Tax Paid (11,911,834) (12,892,623)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (A) 12,891,567 6,739,511
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (59,192,597) (6,388,670)
Finance Income 783,697 2,978,178
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities (B) (58,409,000) (3,410,492)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Finance Cost Paid (2,059,977) -
Proceeds from loan & borrowings 43,995,131 -
Repayment of loan & borrowings (3,801,939) -
Dividend Paid (Both Interim & Final) (3,035,945) (2,350,470)
Dividend Tax Paid - -
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (C ) 35,097,270 (2,350,470)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (10,420,162) 978,550
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning 23,086,264 22,107,713
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end 12,666,102 23,086,264

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As Per Our Report of Even Date
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity
As on Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Figures in NPR
Other Component of Equity
. Equity Share Retained .
Particulars . p - Total Equity
Capital Earnings Actuarial Revaluation
Reserve Reserve
Restated Balance as of Shrawan 1, 2080 48,514,900 216,887,121 (8,806,335) 77,637,418 334,233,104
Changes in Accounting Policies - - - - -
Prior Period Adjustnment - (2,313,924) - - (2,313,924)
Restated Balance as of Shrawan 1, 2080 48,514,900 214,573,197 (8,806,335) 77,637,418 331,919,179
Changes in equity for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 45,805,394 - - 45,805,394
Revaluation Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year - - - 12,035,951 12,035,951
Actuarial Gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan - - (11,585,584) - (11,585,584)
Revaluation Gain on Land & Building - - - - -
Effect of tax on Actuarial Valuation & Revaluation - 2,321,371 (2,411,610) (90,239)
Issue of Ordinary Share - - - - -
Cash Dividend - (2,350,470) - - (2,350,470)
Issue of Bonus Share (Dividend) 12,204,000 (12,204,000) - -
Cash Dividend for Tax Purpose - - - - -
Balance as of Ashad 31, 2081 60,718,900 245,824,121 (18,070,548) 87,261,759 375,734,232
Changes in Accounting Policies - - - - -
Prior Period Adjustnment - (1,960,047) - - (1,960,047)
Restated Balance as of Shrawan 1, 2081 60,718,900 243,864,074 (18,070,548) 87,261,759 373,774,185
Changes in equity for the year ended Ashad 32, 2082
Profit / (Loss) for the year 45,664,479 - 45,664,479
Revaluation Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year - - 8,310,883 8,310,883
Actuarial Gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan - 349,676 - 349,676
Revaluation Gain on Land & Building - - - - -
Effect of tax on Actuarial Valuation & Revaluation - - (70,861) (1,684,186) (1,755,047)
Issue of Ordinary Share - - - - -
Cash Dividend - (3,035,945) - (3,035,945)
Issue of Bonus Share (Dividend) 12,143,780 (12,143,780) - - -
Cash Dividend for Tax Purpose - - - - -
Balance as of Ashad 32, 2082 72,862,680 274,348,828 (17,791,733) 93,888,457 423,308,232

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. As Per Our Report of Even Date

Arun Kumar Chaudhary
Chairman

Karan Kumar Chaudhary
MD & CEO

CA Ayush Nepal
A.l. & Associates

Dhruba Prashad Aryal
Director

Bijay Bahadur Shrestha
Director

CA Nagendra Sah
Director

Shila Chaudhary
Director

Niranjan Neupane

' Anil Basnyat
Director

Director

Date:
Place:
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Kathmandu, Nepal

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
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NEPAL
LUBE OIL

LIMITED

Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

8.2 Current Tax liability/(Assets)

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Balance at the beginning of the period (13,819,354) (10,457,138)
Prior Year Assesment 1,872,341 966,956
Charged during the Year 15,195,462 9,530,407
Total Current Tax Liabilities 3,248,448 40,225
Current Tax Assets
Amount Paid During the Year (11,911,834) (13,859,580)
Current Tax Liabilities/(Assets) (8,663,386) (13,819,354)
Current Tax Assets has been offsetted to the current tax liability since payment is made on net basis.
8.3 Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets)
For the Year 2081-082
Temprorary Deferred Tax
Particulars Tax Base Carying Amount Taxable/(Deduictable) Liability/(Assets)
Differences (*)
Property, Plant & Equipment
Depreciable 88,285,170 109,580,792 21,295,622 4,315,520
Non-Depreciable 748,827 149,306,700 148,557,873 30,104,986
Right of Use Assets - 2,836,958 2,836,958 574,904
Inventories 279,557,344 279,557,344 - -
Leave Payable - (11,496,513) (11,496,513) (2,329,748)
Gratuity Payable - (40,016,429) (40,016,429) (8,109,257)
Provisions - (61,055,712) (61,055,712) (12,372,830)
Lease Liabilty - (3,033,192) (3,033,192) (614,671)
Balance at Ashad 32, 2082 11,568,903
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2081 13,301,916
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) (1,733,013)
Recognized in Profit or Loss for the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (3,488,060)
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 1,755,047
Recognized in Equity for the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 -
For the Year 2080-081
Temprorary Deferred Tax
Particulars Tax Base Carying Amount Taxable/(Deduictable) Liability/(Assets)
Differences ()
Property, Plant & Equipment
Depreciable 50,653,950 65,505,605 14,851,654 2,975,784
Non-Depreciable 748,827 142,102,095 141,353,268 28,322,559
Inventories 218,033,268 218,033,268 - -
Leave Payable - (9,260,345) (9,260,345) (1,855,469)
Gratuity Payable - (40,838,983) (40,838,983) (8,182,793)
Provisions - (39,717,900) (39,717,900) (7,958,165)
Balance at Ashad 31, 2081 13,301,916
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2080 11,323,977
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) 1,977,940
Recognized in Profit or Loss for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 1,887,701
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 90,239

Recognized in Equity for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081

(*) Deferred tax has been calculated based on rate for special industry(manufacturing) and normal industry (trading) at the rates of 20 percent and 25 percent respectively
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Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Inventories
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Trading/Manufacturing Goods
Raw Materials 114,122,315 103,872,586
Finished Goods 157,695,920 112,073,768
Spare Parts 7,739,108 2,086,913
Total (A) 279,557,344 218,033,268
Share Capital
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Number NPR Number NPR
Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each
Authorized Share Capital 1,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000 100,000,000
Issued & Fully Paid
At the Beginning of the Year 607,189 60,718,900 485,149 48,514,900
Bonus Issues during the Year 122,040 12,204,000
Total 607,189 60,718,900 607,189 60,718,900
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Number NPR Number NPR
Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each
Per share Rs. 100.00 each 168,361 16,836,100 168,361 16,836,100
(i) Bonus share 34,561 Nos 34,561 3,456,100 34,561 3,456,100
(i) Bonus share 65,503 Nos 65,503 6,550,300 65,503 6,550,300
(i) Bonus share 29,107 Nos. 29,107 2,910,700 29,107 2,910,700
(iif) Bonus share 90,053 Nos. 90,053 9,005,300 90,053 9,005,300
(iv) Bonus share 97,564 Nos. 97,564 9,756,400 97,564 9,756,400
(v) Bonus share 122,040 Nos. 122,040 12,204,000 122,040 12,204,000
(vi) Bonus share 121,438 Nos. 121,438 12,143,780 - -
Total 728,627 72,862,680 607,189 60,718,900
Financial Liabilities
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Borrowings from Bank 401,652,033 306,935,406
Over Draft Loan 44,989,384 37,253,406
Trust Receipt Loan 131,422,000 139,682,000
Demand Loan 182,400,000 130,000,000
Letter of Credit 2,647,457 -
Vehicle Loan(Short Term Loan) 36,253,113 -
Fixed Assets EMI Loan Alc 3,940,079 -
Trade & Other Paybles 77,054,610 61,608,676
Trade Payables 76,081,559 61,162,707
Other Payables 973,051 445,969
Total 478,706,643 368,544,082
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For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements

(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

Employee Benefits Liabilities
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Defined Benefit Obligation
Gratuity Payable 40,016,429 40,838,983
Defined Contirbution Scheme
Providend Fund Payable 4,219 123,787
Scoial Security Fund 298,690 620,582
CIT Payable 347,534 247,854
Other Employee Benefits Payable
Leave Payable 11,496,513 9,260,345
Staff Bonus Payable 6,454,044 6,422,391
Salary Payable 517,194 777,251
Other Staff Payables (Incentives to Staff) 12,757,754 10,381,646
Total 71,892,377 68,672,839
Categorized as:
Current 23,976,959 29,194,251
Non- Current 47,915,418 39,478,588
Total 71,892,377 68,672,839
Disclosure Related to Employment Benefit Liabilities
Gratuity
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 40,838,983 31,092,845
Net Current Service Cost 2,082,697 2,140,428
Past Service Cost (1,146,074) -
Interest Cost on Defined Benefit Obligation 3,236,771 2,506,471
Actuarial (Gain)/Loses - Experience Adjustment (349,676) 11,585,584
Benefits Paid (4,646,272) (6,486,345)
Losses/Gain on Curtailment Settlements - -
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period 40,016,429 40,838,983
Reconcilition of Statement of Financial Position Amount
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Balance at the Begining of the Period 40,838,983 31,092,845
Total Charge Recognized in P & L 4,173,394 4,646,899
Total Remeasurement Recognized in OCI (349,676) 11,585,584
Benefit Paid by Company During the Year (4,646,272) (6,486,345)
Balance at the End of the Period 40,016,429 40,838,983
Current / Non-Current Bifurcation
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Current Benefit Obligation 2,708,437 9,749,730
Non Current Benefit Obligation 37,307,992 31,089,253
Liabilitiy Recognized in the Statement of Financial Position 40,016,429 40,838,983

T ogd 3MIT [,




Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars

32.03.2082

31.03.2081

Opening Plan Assets

Employers Contribution

Benefits Paid

Actuarial (Gain)/Loses - Experience Adjustment

Closing plan assets at the end of the Period

Financial Assumption Used to Determine the Defined Benefit Obligation

Discount Rate p.a. 9.00%
Salary Escalation Rate p.a. 6.67%
Financial Assumption Used to Determine the Profit & Loss Charge
Discount Rate 9.00%
Salary Escalation Rate 6.67%
Expected Return on Plan Assets N.A
Demographic Assumption Used to Determine the Defined Benefit Obligation
Withdrawl Rate 5%
Nepali Assured
Mortality Rate Lives
Mortality 2009
Retirement Age 60 Years
Expected Future Cash Flows
Year Cash Flow
2026 -
2027 -
2028-2030 -

Breakup of Actuarial (Gain) / Losses

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars Previous Year Current Year

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 40,838,983 31,092,845
Service Cost 936,623 2,140,428
Interest Cost 3,236,771 2,506,471
Actual Plan participant Contribution - -
Total Actuarial (Gain) / Losses (349,676) 11,585,584
a.Effect of Change in Financial Assumption - -
b.Effect of Change in Demographic Assumption - -

c. Experience (Gain)/ Losses (349,676) 11,585,584
Benefit Paid (4,646,272) (6,486,345)
Past Service Cost - -
Loss/(Gain) on Curtailment Settlement - -
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period 40,016,429 40,838,983

AT ogd NI [,




NEPAL
LUBE OIL
LIMITED

Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements

(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

Leave Encashment

32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Casual Leave - -
Home Leave 5,979,776 4,675,093
Sick Leave 5,516,737 4,585,252
Total 11,496,513 9,260,345
Reconcilition of Amount Recognized in Statement of Financial Position
Particulars SRR
Casual Leave Home Leave Sick Leave
Amount at the Beginning of the Period - 4,675,093 4,585,252
Total Expenses/(income) Recognized in P&L - 1,354,867 995,740
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss Recognized in P&L - 137,869 110,562
Benefit Payout - (188,053) (174,817)
Liabilities at the End of the Period - 5,979,776 5,516,737
Current/ Non Current Bifurcation
Particulars B203:2082
Casual Leave Home Leave Sick Leave
Current Benefit Obligation - 463,795 425,292
Non-Current Benefit Obligation - 5,515,981 5,091,445
Total Liabilities - 5,979,776 5,516,737
Particulars Sil03:2061
Casual Leave Home Leave Sick Leave
Amount at the Beginning of the Period 59,838 4,459,892 7,939,811
(59,838) (722,030) 781,868
Total Expenses/(income) Recognized in P&L - 877,732 1,247,391
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss Recognized in P&L - 763,341 (3,741,519)
Benefit Payout - (703,842) (1,642,299)
Liabilities at the End of the Period - 4,675,093 4,585,252
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)
Current/ Non Current Bifurcation

Demographic Assumptions

Particulars SHOSIE00]
Casual Leave Home Leave Sick Leave
Current Benefit Obligation - 470,808 400,203
Non-Current Benefit Obligation - 4,204,285 4,185,049
Total Liabilities - 4,675,093 4,585,252
Actuarial Valuation Assumptions Used for Valuation
Particulars 32037052
Casual Leave Home Leave Sick Leave
Economic Assumptions
Discount Rate 9% 9% 9%
Salary Escalation Rate 6.67% 6.67% 6.67%

Mortality

Nepali Assured Lives

Nepali Assured Lives

Nepali Assured Lives

Mortality 2009 Mortality 2009 Mortality 2009
Employee Turnover / Withdrawl Rate 5% 5% 5%
Leave Availment Ratio 1% 1% 1%
Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years 60 Years
13 Lease Liability

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Non-Current
Lease Liability-Non Current 1,710,605 1,705,208

Total 1,710,605 1,705,208
Current
Lease Liability- Current 1,322,587 1,302,087
Total 1,322,587 1,302,087

Reconcilition of Statement of Financial Position Amount

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Opening balance 3,007,295 -
Initial Reconition 1,460,802 4,072,030
Finance Cost 329,096 335,265
Lease Paymnet (1,764,000) (1,400,000)
Closing balance 3,033,192 3,007,295
Current / Non-Current Bifurcation

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Current 1,710,605 1,302,087
Non Current 1,322,587 1,705,208
Liabilitiy Recognized in the Statement of Financial Position 3,033,192 3,007,295
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

3.1 Other Liabilities
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Non-Current
Total
Current
TDS Payable 3,150,072 4,901,543
Interest Payable - 705,888
Audit Fee Payable 295,500 295,500
Net Value Added Tax Payables 10,528,459 170,626
VAT Payables 175,881,036 152,601,081
VAT Receivables (165,352,577) (152,430,455)
Total 13,974,031 6,073,557
14 Provisions
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Provsion for CSR Expenses 1,160,011 578,015
Provision for Expenses Payables 7,385,683 12,169,282
Provision for Selling & Distribution Expenses 52,512,500 26,970,603
Total 61,058,194 39,717,900
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

15 Revenue from Operations
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Sale of goods 1,359,168,260 1,184,031,438
Less: Sales Return (6,383,477) (8,570,269)
Total 1,352,784,783 1,175,461,170
16 Cost of Operations/Sales
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Opening Stock of goods 218,033,268 215,382,818
Purchase during the period 951,725,215 784,036,743
Direct & Manufacturing Expenses (16.1) 57,474,812 43,031,471
Less: Closing Stock of goods (279,557,344) (218,033,268)
Total 947,675,952 824,417,765
16.1 Direct & Manufacturing Expenses
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Depreciation & Amortization 9,174,039 3,361,944
Equipment Calibration Charge 18,221 45,050
Machinery Repair & Maintenance 373,121 435,255
Renewal Charges - 30,000
Royalty Expenses 21,772,807 15,395,515
Travelling Expenses 307,999 120,000
Production Cost -
Electricity, Fuel, Water 2,661,900 2,333,314
Plant Insurance 2,375,946 2,265,486
Lab Chemical 125,025 13,048
Telephone Expenses 21,541 21,513
Printing & Stationary 43,053 -
Production Employee Benefit Expenses 20,601,160 19,010,345
Total 57,474,812 43,031,471
17 Other Operating Income
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Interest Income 4,298,013 6,825,393
Miscellaneous income 5,222,584 313,355
Total 9,520,597 7,138,748
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Depreciation & Amortization

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 17,471,550 7,311,572
Total 17,471,550 7,311,572
Alloacated to
Administrative & General Expenses 8,297,511 3,949,628
Selling & Distribution Expenses - -
Manufacturing Expenses & Cost of Sales 9,174,039 3,361,944
Total 17,471,550 7,311,572
Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Short-Term Employee Benefits
Wages & Salaries 42,882,649 32,898,404
Allowances 26,477,868 23,035,662
Insurance & Medical Expenses 4,704,621 4,808,152
Staff Bonus Expenses - 6,422,391
Labour Welfare & Uniform Expenses 321,040 466,105
Gratuity Cost -
Defined Contribution 1,843,482 2,633,190
Defined Benefits 5,260,224 7,756,247
Total Employee Benefit Expenses 81,489,883 78,020,151
Selling & Distribution Expenses
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Advertisement & Event Expenses 19,024,113 6,287,546
Wall Painting & Flex printing expenses 8,128,922 10,922,054
Gift and Present Distribution Expenses 933,450 299,120
Marketing Staff Travelling Expenses 12,441,076 8,627,513
Telephone, Printing, Stationary etc of Marketing 318,190 202,474
SSF & Medical Expenses of Marketing 2,213,786 2,015,924
Sales Incentive of Marketing 10,202,500 8,232,505
Scheme Expenses (Retailer & PGM) 65,425,122 46,307,188
Lubricants Outward transportation expenses 28,428,445 19,652,239
Service Camp Expenses - 570,502
Third party Testing Expenses - 286,800
Testing Fee 796,810 238,087
Local level sport branding expenses - 5,396,430
Sales Target Bonus (Distributors) 43,229,868 34,865,322
Interest Expenses 7,574,655 7,119,591
Market promotion expenses 26,241,731 27,437,881
Industrial, Distributors, Retailer Meet Expenses 6,575,362 6,833,902
Training Expenses 389,405 339,706
Leakage Expenses - -
Private Garage Mechanics Meet Expenses - 7,849,110
Repair & Maintenance Selling & Distribution 27,026
Sales & Marketing Employee Benefits Expenses 27,926,241 24,246,456
Total 259,876,702 217,630,348
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

21 Administrative and General Expenses

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081

Depreciation & Amortization 8,297,511 3,949,628
House/Godown Rent 25,890 256,522
Repair & Maintenance (Building) - -
Electricity, Fuel & Water Expenses 820,565 755,060
Vehicle Fuel Expenses 1,128,719 876,395
Repair & Maintenance (Vehicle) 130,773 -
Audit Fee 400,000 300,000
Other Certifications 399,100 -
Legal Court Fee & Other legal expenses 17,000 442 578
Right Share Issue & Rating expenses 582,136 -
Property Tax & Other Taxes 826,424 -
Board Meeting Allowance 1,298,303 1,454,796
Bank charge & Commission 948,301 660,462
Annual General Meeting Expenses 800,105 661,163
Repair Plant & Machinery of Amlekhgunj 151,366 94,471
Insurance Expenses (Staff & office assets) - -
Communication (Postage,Courier, Telephone, Internet) 443,946 333,670
Printing & Stationary Expenses 415,021 421,613
Notice Publication expenses - -
Charity & Donation 235,000 734,801
Books & Magzine Expenses - -
Professional Fees 510,000 150,000
Uniform Expenses - 75,214
Guest Entertainment & Fooding Expenses 71,909 38,330
Mics. Expenses 285,639 471,611
Revaluation loss charged to profit or loss 249,829 -
Tender form purchase expenses 36,000 5,000
Nepse, RTS, Security Board, NFRS, Share Reg. Expenses 322,760 59,000
Advertisement Expenses 8,765 4,500
Annual renewal Expenses 741,744 275,380
Puja Expenses 205,763 211,955
Office & Factory Tea & food Expenses 606,260 563,027
Consumable Goods 221,475 154,724
Travelling Expenses 1,364,986 1,014,051
Security Guard Expenses 1,932,743 1,740,000
Board of Directors' Expenses 640,000 1,053,000
Employee Benefit Expenses 32,962,483 24,362,264
Allowances on Debtors (NFRS 9) 919,651

Total 58,000,169 41,119,215
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Other Operating Expenses

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
CSR Expenses 579,514 578,015
Staff Bonus 6,439,044 6,422,391
Total 7,018,558 7,000,406
Finance Cost
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Interest on Borrowings 28,762,748 34,329,340
Finance Cost
Lease Liabilities 329,096 335,265
Employee Benefits Liabilities 4,053,873 3,522,254
Total 33,145,716 38,186,859
Other Income/Gains
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Actuarial Gain on Other Long term Employee Benefit (Home &Sick Leave) - 2,978,178
Finance Income on Staff Loan 783,597 -
Total 783,597 2,978,178
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

25 Earning Per Share

Particulars 32.03.2082 ?;::;;221) 31.03.2081
Profit from Continuing Operations 45,664,479 45,805,394 45,805,394
Profit/ (Loss) on Discontinued Operations(net of tax) - - -
Profit for the Year (A) 45,664,479 45,805,394 45,805,394
Weighted Average No. of Shares
No of Shares at the Beginning of the period 607,189 607,189 485,149
Weighted Average No. of Shares Issued during the Year - -
Bonus Shares Issued During the Year 121,438 121,438 122,040
Total Weighted Average No. of Shares(B) 728,627 728,627 607,189
Adjustment for potential Shares
No of Potential Equity Shares - - -
Total Weighted Average No. of Shares for Diluted EPS (C) 728,627 728,627 607,189
Earning per Share (NPR
a) Basic EPS 62.67 62.87 75.44
b) Diluted EPS 62.67 62.87 75.44

26 Disclosures Related to Financial Instruments Risk

Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Entity’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Entity’s operations. The Entity’s principal financial assets include trade receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations. The
Entity also holds investments in debt and equity instruments .transactions.

The Entity is exposed to_market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Entity’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Entity’s senior management
is supported by a financial risk advisors that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Entity. The financial risk advisors provides
assurance to the Entity’s senior management that the Entity’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Entity’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that
have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Entity’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

27 Related Party Transactions
Major Key Related Parties: Entity

Name of Parties Nature of Relationships
ABB Investment Pvt Ltd Holder

Nepal Oil Corporation Holder

Rastrya Beema Company Ltd. Share Holder

Himal Cement Company Ltd Share Holder

National Trading Company Ltd Share Holder

Rastrya Banijya Bank Ltd Share Holder

Major Key Related Parties: Natural Person

Name of Parties Nature of Relationshif Positions

Arun Kumar Chaudhary Key Management Personnel Chairman

Bijaya Bahadur Shrestha Key Management Personnel Directors
Representative- Nepal Oil Corporation Key Management Personnel Directors
Company Ltd. Key Management Personnel Directors

Nirajan Neupane Key Management Personnel Directors

Anil Basnyat Key Management Personnel Directors

Shila Chaudhary Key Management Personnel Directors

Karan Kumar Chaudhary Key Management Personnel MD/CEO

Ganga Raj Bhattarai Key Management Personnel General Manager

Related Parties listed above does not include close family members of Key Management Personnel, controlling person and person with significant influence unless there is material transaction with them.

The following table provides the total amount of sales,purchase and balances that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year.

Particulars Sales to Related Parties Purchase from Related Parties Receivables Balance Payable Balance
32.03.2082 31.03.2081 32.03.2082 31.03.2081 32.03.2082 31.03.2081 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
a) AL TPVT.LTD 11,945,362.84 12,888,323.61 - - 2,665,420.42 685,652.49 - -
Total 11,945,362.84 12,888,323.61 - - 2,665,420.42 685,652.49 - -

Goods are sold based on the price lists in force and terms that would be available to third parties.

Related Parties Transactions

. Payable at year end Interest Income Receivable at year end
Particulars
2081-082 2080-081 2081-082 2080-081 2081-082 2080-081

a) its Parent Entity - - - - - _

b) Its Subsidiaries - - - - - -
NLOL Synergy -
NLOL Energy R

c) Key Management Personnel - - - - - -

Total - - - R R R

There is no loan and advance to related parties during the above mentioned fiscal year

Key Management Personnel Compensation
Key management includes the Board of Directors (executive and non-executive), all members of Entity Management and the Company Secretary. The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee
services is shown below:

0 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
e Directors MD & CEO Key Manager Directors G.M Key Manager
Short-term Employee Benefits
Remuneration Benefits and Allowances 1,818,303.38 6,880,000.00 27,246,005.21 2,376,529.41 6,627,160.28 21,857,473.34
Total 1,818,303.38 6,880,000.00 27,246,005.21 2,376,529.41 6,627,160.28 21,857,473.34

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management personnel.

28 Contingencies
Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are potential future cash out flows, where the likelihood of payment is considered more than remote, but is not considered probable or cannot be measured reliably.

29 Events After the end of the Reporting Date
There are no significant events after reporting period.
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited (Group)

Kathmandu, Nepal
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
For the year ended Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

(All amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise stated)

1.Reporting Entity/ Corporate Information

The consolidated financial statements of Nepal Lube Oil Limited (Group),
including the Statement of Financial Position as at 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025),
Statements of Profit or Loss, Other Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity, and Cash
Flows for the year ended 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025), along with related Significant
Accounting Policies and Notes.

Nepal Lube Oil Limited (Group), hereinafter referred to as “group”, comprises of Nepal
Lube Oil Limited (the parent company) and two subsidiary companies namely N.L.O.L.
Energy Limited and N.L.O.L. Synergy Limited.

Nepal Lube Oil Limited (NLOL) operates under the brand name "Gulf" and is one of
Nepal's leading lubricant manufacturing and distribution companies. Established in
1983, NLOL specializes in producing a wide range of high-quality lubricants, such as
engine oils, greases, and industrial oils. NLOL is registered under the Nepal Company
Act 2021 (1964 AD) in 15 July, 1984.and operates in close collaboration with Gulf Oil
International, a globally recognized leader in lubricants, which provides the
company access to cutting-edge technologies and expertise. NLOL was
privatized in 2051/2052 (1994/1995) as per the Government’s Privatization Policy.

NLOL's products cater to various sectors, including automotive and industrial
applications, and are distributed across Nepal. The company's primary focus is on
delivering lubricants that enhance vehicle and machinery performance while
maintaining environmental responsibility. NLOL's commitment to sustainability is
evident through its adherence to global standards and its emphasis on
producing fuel-efficient and low-emission lubricants. With its continued innovation and
expansion, NLOL aims to support the economic and industrial development of Nepal

The shares of the company are listed and traded on the Nepal Stock Exchange Limited
(NEPSE) and its stock symbol is “NLO” The company has its registered office at Saket
Complex, Tripureshwor, Kathmandu.

N.L.O.L. Synergy Limited (“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated un-
der Companies Act, 2063 of Nepal. The registered office of the Company is located at
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» spective notes as applicable.

2.4. Reporting Dates

Particulars Nepalese Calendar Date / Period | Gregorian Calendar Date / Period
Comparative SOFP* Date 31 Ashadh 2081 15 July 2024

Comparative reporting period | 1 Shrawan 2080 - 31 Ashadh 2081 | 17 July 2023 - 15 July 2024

SOFP* Date 32 Ashadh 2082 16-Jul-2025

Financial reporting period 1 Shrawan 2081 - 32 Ashadh 2082 | 16 July 2024 - 16 July 2025

*SOFP = Statement of Financial Position

2.5. Basis of Measurement

The group financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by revaluation of Land, Buildings and Physical
Structure, along with fair value measurement of financial assets and liabilities.
The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis.

2.6. Functional & Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the
company’s functional currency. All the financial information presented in Nepalese
Rupees have been rounded to the nearest rupees, except otherwise stated.

2.7. Principle of Consolidation

Financial statements of the parent company Nepal Lube Oil Limited (NLOL) and
two subsidiaries N.L.O.L. Energy Limited and N.L.O.L. Synergy Limited. has been
consolidated in accordance Financial Reporting Framework issued by Accounting
Standard Board Nepal and as pronounced by Institute of Chartered Accountants Of
Nepal. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following
basis:

a) The financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries have been combined on a
line-by-line basis by adding together the carrying values of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses after eliminating intra-Group balances / transactions and resulting profits
in full. Unrealized profit / losses resulting from intra-Group transactions has also been
eliminated except to the extent that recoverable value of related assets is lower than
their cost to the Group.

b) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform account-
ing policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are
to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Companies’ separate financial
statements. Differences in accounting policies, if any, has been disclosed separately.
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c) The extent of the group’s control on the subsidiaries is reflected by the entitlement
to issued share capital committed to be held in the subsidiaries. The details of which is
as under.

Name Country of Incorporation As at 32 Ashad, 2082
N.L.O.L. Energy Limited Nepal 100%
N.L.O.L. Energy Limited Nepal 100%

d) The financial statements of the subsidiaries used for consolidation are drawn for
the same reporting date as that of the parent company i.e. year ended 32 Ashad, 2082.
(16 July 2025)

2.8. Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of
Directors of the Company are satisfied that the Company has resources to continue
the business for foreseeable future. In making this assessment, Board of Directors
have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions,
including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.
Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend
either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.

2.9. Materiality

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial state-
ments. ltems of dissimilar nature or functions are presented separately unless they are
immaterial

2.10. Changes in Accounting Policies

The company has applied its accounting policies consistently from year to year except
for some comparatives elsewhere disclosed separately that have been grouped or re-
grouped to facilitate comparison, corrections of errors and such exceptions have been
disclosed explicitly with detail explanations in the relevant sections of this notes to the
financial statements

2.11. Re-grouping & Re-classification

The figures for the previous period have been regrouped/rearranged/ re-classified
wherever necessary to make them more reliable, fair and comparable with the current
period’s figures.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

NFRS requires the company to adopt accounting policies that are most appropriate
to the company’s circumstances. In determining and applying accounting policies,
management is required to make judgements in respect of items where the choice
of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could ma-
terially affect the company’s reported financial position, results or cash flows.

The accounting policies adopted by the company are applied consistently. The
accounting policies have been disclosed in the following sections of these notes to the
financial statements. Effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed at
appropriate places.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements
are set out below.

3.1. Current/Non-current Classification

The entity presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on
current/non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

. Expected to be realized in the normal operating cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle

a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
Other than the above, assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

. Expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
. Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or
. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.
Other than specified above, the liabilities are classified as non-current.

3.2. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated in the Statement of Financial
Position at their cost and are inclusive of all expenses necessary to bring the assets to
working condition for its intended use less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if applicable. PPE are recognized as an
asset, if and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the company; and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
depreciation period is based on the expected useful life of an asset.
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Plant and Machinery shall be capitalized as and when they are available for use.
Nepal Accounting Standard (NAS) 16 and International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 1 require cost of PPE to include the estimated cost
for dismantling and removal of the assets, and restoring the site on which they are
located. Management perceives that such costs are difficult to estimate and
considering the past practice the amount of such costs is not material to affect the economic
decision of the user as a result of such non-inclusion. Therefore, asset retirement
obligation (ARO) has not been recognized in the financial statements.

Freehold land properties, building and physical structure held by the company is
recognized and reported at fair value conducting periodic revaluation. If an asset’s
carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase shall be
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of revaluation surplus. However, the increase shall be
recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss.

If an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease
shall be recognized in profit or loss. However, the decrease shall be recognized in
other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the
surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease recognized in other comprehensive
income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under the heading of
revaluation surplus. The accumulated depreciation on revalued
building and physical structure is eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the assets and net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the assets.

Assets Held for Sale

During the current financial year, the company (NLOL) has classified certain fixed
assets as held for sale in accordance with NFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations. Such assets meet the criteria for classification as held for
sale as their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use.

These assets are available for immediate sale in their present condition, and the sale
is highly probable. Management is committed to the plan to sell these assets, actively
engaged in seeking buyers, and expects completion of the sale within one year from the
date of classification.

The assets are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
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to sell, and as such, no depreciation has been charged on these assets since such
classification. As at the reporting date, such assets held for sale include vehicle/s only.
These are presented separately in the statement of financial position as current assets.
There were no significant changes to the plan for disposal subsequent to the reporting
date and such assets have been sold after reporting date.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to expense off the cost of assets, other than land, using
straight line method over their estimated useful lives. The depreciation is charged on
revalued amount of building and physical structure over the remaining useful life. The
residual values, useful life and depreciation methods are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. If expectations differ from the previous estimates the changes are
accounted for as changes in estimates in accordance with NAS 8.

Items of PPE are depreciated on pro rata basis in the year of acquisition. The residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation methods of assets are reviewed at least at
each financial year end and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, they are
accounted for as a change in accounting estimates in accordance with NAS 8. Freehold
land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence
until they are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items
of property, plant and equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected
useful economic lives.

Depreciation has been computed on Straight Line Method. The estimate useful lives for
the assets are as follows:

Class of Property Plant & | Useful life | Depreciation| Depreciation | Measurement Basis
Equipment Rates Method

Factory Buildings 20 Years 5% SLM Revaluation Model
Office Building 25 Years 4% SLM Revaluation Model
Plant and Machinery
-Machine, Equipment 15 Years 6.67% SLM Cost Model
-Storage Tanks 20 Years 5% SLM Cost Model
-Fixtures and F|tt|ngs 10 Years 10% SLM Cost Model
-Other Office Equipment 5 Years 20% SLM Cost Model
Computer Equipment
-Desktop Computer 5 Years 20% SLM Cost Model
-Laptop Computer 4 Years 25% SLM Cost Model
f'g‘\’/f/zg ;llgg'c’es 10 Years 10% SLM Cost Model
-4 Wheelers 8 Years 12.5% SLM Cost Model
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3.3. Leases
Leases are recognized as ROU asset and a corresponding liability on which the leased
asset is available for use by the company. In the current year two of the such leases
have been recognized as assets as right to use assets along with its corresponding
liabilities. These leases pertain to the premises used in the business operation.

Right of Use (ROU) Assets

TIt consists of the cost of initial measurement of lease liability and any initial direct costs
related to such recognition. They are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss (if any).

These assets are generally depreciated over straight line method over the asset’s useful
life or lease term whichever is earlier.

Lease Liabilities

They are measured at the present value of lease payments outstanding as on
the date. This payment includes fixed payments less incentives along with any
modification clauses for payments based on the contract. Lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing is used. This is the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
ROU in a similar economic environment with similar term, security and conditions.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Remeasurement of Lease Liabilities

. There is a change in future lease payments arising from changes in an index or
rate changes.
. In case the company exercised extension after termination of lease period

Modification to the scope to the contract
3.4. Intangible Assets

Computer Software

Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use the software. These costs are amortized over the estimated
useful lives.

Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the company are stated at cost less

STt &d 3IIIcT fed.




NEPAL
LUBE OIL
LIMITED

accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Amortization
Amortization is charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets.

3.5.

Financial Assets

A financial asset is any asset that is:

(e)

-_—

(a) cash;
(b) an equity instrument of another entity;
(c) a contractual right:
(i) to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
(i)  to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity
under conditions that are potentially favorable to the entity; or
(d) a contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments
and is:
(i)  anon-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a
variable number of the entity's own equity instruments; or
(i) a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number
of the entity's own equity instruments.
a contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and is:
(iii) a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a
variable number of the entity's own equity instruments; or
(iv) a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number
of the entity's own equity instruments.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

If Business Model is to held Financial Assets to collect contractual cash flows &
if it is held for solely payment of principal and interest on outstanding principal,
financial assets are classified under this category.

It is initially measured at fair value plus transactions costs.

It is subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.
Interest charges shall be calculated on opening balance of amortized cost

Financial Assets at Fair Value through profit or loss
Following Financial Assets are classified under this category:
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(a) If Financial Assets does not meet the condition of measured at amortized

cost or if made irrevocable election to reduce the accounting mismatch,
(b) Compulsory classified under this category:

(i)  Financial Assets held for trading,

(i)  All derivatives except held for hedging
ItisinitiallymeasuredatFairvalueandanytransactionscostsischargedtoProfitorloss.
It is subsequently measured at Fair value with changes recognized in profit or loss.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other comprehensive income

If made irrevocable election and it is investment in equity instrument not held for
trading, i.e. entity has strategic intent to hold the investment in equity instruments.
It is initially measured at Fair value plus transactions costs.

It is subsequently measured at Fair value with changes recognized in other
comprehensive income under equity (Subsequently not reclassified to profit or
loss).

Reclassification of Financial Assets

Reclassification on Financial Assets is made only when there is changes in
business model for managing financial assets.

New Carrying amount of financial assets is Fair value at the date of
reclassifica tion.

Any gain/loss on reclassification is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets that is measured at amortized Cost
Financial asset is tested for impairment if objective evidence of impairment exists
at the end of every reporting period.

Impairment losses are recognized if it carrying amount exceeds the present value
of future cash flows discounted at original effective interest.

For the purpose of impairment test financial assets are grouped if significant on
the basis on similar credit risks and other financial assets are tested on stand-
alone basis.

3.6. Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is any liability having:

(@)

(b)

contractual obligation:

(i)  to deliver cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

(i)  to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the entity; or

a contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and is:

(i) a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a
variable number of the entity's own equity instruments; or
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(i) a derivative that will or may be settled other thanby the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity's
own equity instruments.

A. Recognition of Financial Liabilities
A financial Liabilities is recognized when the entity become party to the contractual
provision of financial instruments.

B. Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
A financial Liabilities is de-recognized when:

a) Contractual obligation to pay Cash flows extinguished or

b) There is a substantial modification of term of contract or exchange of financial
liabilities with substantial different terms.

. Gain/ (loss) on derecognition of Financial Liabilities is recognized in profit or loss.

(
(

C. Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities
1. Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

. All financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost except otherwise stated.
. It is initially measured at Fair value plus transactions costs.

. It is subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.
. Interest Charges shall be calculated on opening balance of amortized cost.

2. Exception of Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Classification Measurement

Financial liabilities at Fair Value * Measured at Fair Value on initial recognition & subsequently
Through Profit or Loss (including |* Changes are recognized in profit or loss
Derivatives held for trading)

Liabilities created on transfer of  Measured at Fair of Consideration received for transfer of financial

Financial Assets assets if it does not qualify for recognition
Financial Guarantee Contract Subsequently Measure at higher of
* Amount as per NAS 37: provision, contingent liabilities & contingent
assets

* Initial amount less Cum amortization as per NAS 18 Revenue

Subsidized loan (loan at be- Subsequently Measure at higher of
low-market interest rates) * Amount as per NAS 37: provision, contingent liabilities & contingent
assets

* Initial amount less Cum amortization as per NAS 18 Revenue

Entity made irrevocable election to classify financial liability at Fair Value through Profit
or Loss on following condition:
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. If it reduces the accounting mismatch.
. Financial liability is evaluated on fair value basis.

D. Reclassification of Financial liabilities
No Financial liabilities shall be reclassified

3.7. Presentation of Financial Instruments

A. Offsetting of Financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial Assets & liabilities are offset in Statement of financial position only if the entity

. Has legally enforceable rights to set off the recognized amount
. Nets basis or simultaneous basis settlement of the respective assets with
liabilities

B. Interest Dividend, losses & gains
Interest dividends, losses & gains relating to financial instrument or component

. that is FL shall be recognized as expenses or income in PL

. Distribution to holders of equity instruments shall be debited in equity (net of tax
benefit)

. Transaction cost (net of tax benefit) related to equity instrument is deducted from
equity

. Transaction cost related to compound instrument is allocated to both equity &

liability component in pro-rata of value of both component

3.8. Inventories

Inventories are initially recognized at cost, and subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the variable selling expenses.

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred
in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition. In
the case of manufactured inventories and work-in progress, cost includes an appropri-
ate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.

3.9. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and other short term
highly liquid investments.

3.10. Impairment
Non-financial assets (other than biological assets measured at fair value less cost to sell,
investment property measured at fair value, Financial Assets, inventories and deferred
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tax assets) are subject to impairment tests whenever events or changes in circumstanc-
es indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where the carrying value
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell), the asset is written down accordingly.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
impairment test is carried out on the smallest parts of assets to which it belongs for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows and its cash generating units (‘CGUs’).

Impairment charges are included in the statement of profit or loss.

3.11. Share Capital

Financial instruments issued by the company are classified as equity only to the extent
that they do not meet the definition of financial liability or financial asset. The company’s
equity shares are classified as equity instruments.

All the issued shares are fully paid and have equal voting rights.

The details of shareholdings holding more than 0.5% of total paid up capital are as fol-
lows:

Name 32.03.2082 31.03.2081

A.B.B. Investment Pvt Ltd 39.92% 39.92%
Arun Kumar Chaudhary 5.14% 5.14%
Bijay Bahadur Shrestha 0.60% 0.60%
Himal Cement Co. 4.23% 4.23%
Karan Kumar Chaudhary 5.68% 5.68%
Mandira Amatya Joshi 4.12% 4.12%
National Trading Ltd. 2.81% 2.81%

Nepal Oil Corporation Ltd 14.50% 14.50%
Rajendra Kumar Khetan 1.07% 1.07%
Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited 1.61% 1.61%
Rastriya Beema Company Limited 4.23% 4.23%
Shila Chaudhary 1.10% 1.10%
Shree Himalayan Enterprises Pvt.Ltd 1.08% 1.08%
Sonam Chuki Shrestha 1.64% 1.64%
Others 12.29% 12.29%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

3.12. Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits, such as salaries, paid leave, and social security costs,
are recognized over the period in which the employees provide the related services. The
company operates several post-retirement benefit schemes for its employees, including
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both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.

A defined benefit scheme specifies an amount of pension, gratuity, or leave compensa-
tion benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, dependent on factors such as
age, years of service, and salary. A defined contribution plan involves fixed contributions
by the company with no further payment obligation once contributions are made.

Full actuarial valuations of the company’s defined benefit schemes are carried out pe-
riodically by qualified independent actuaries, with interim reviews in between. Scheme
assets are included at fair value, and scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial
basis using assumptions updated at each valuation date. The liabilities are discounted
using market yields at the reporting date.

In the current financial year, significant changes in the retirement age from 58 to 60
with respect to the post employment benefit and other long term employee benefit has
resulted in change in defined benefit obligation due to the extension of expected service
period before retirement.

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (ex-
cluding amounts included in net interest expense), and any changes to the asset ceiling,
are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income and reflected in retained
earnings without subsequent recycling to profit or loss.

The statement of financial position includes the net surplus or deficit, defined as the dif-
ference between the fair value of scheme assets and the discounted value of scheme li-
abilities. Surpluses are recognized only to the extent that they can be recovered through
reduced future contributions or refunds.

3.13. Taxation

The company applies NAS 12 for accounting and reporting income taxes. Income tax
on the profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized
directly in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, us-
ing tax rates enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment made to tax payable in
respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty re-
lated to income taxes, if any.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable in future arising from
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation oftaxable profit.

It is computed using statement of financial position liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets recognized to the extent that is probable that the temporary differences or taxable
profit will be available against which deductive temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized, based on the level of future taxable profit forecasts and tax planning strategies.

Currentand deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is alegally enforceable
righttosetoffcurrenttaxassets against currenttaxliabilitiesand whentheyrelatetoincome
taxeslevied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its currenttax
assetsandliabilitiesonanetbasisortorealizetheassetandsettletheliabilitysimultaneously.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at
the same time as the liability to pay the related dividend.

Value Added Tax

Value Added Tax is an indirect tax payable on sales of goods or services (except specif-
ically exempted). Entity is VAT registered party. Entity pays VAT liabilities after reducing
VAT on purchase from VAT on sales which is allowed by VAT Act 2052.

3.14. Trade & Other Payables

Trade payables represent liabilities which are unpaid. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve (12) months after the report-
ing period. Otherwise, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are
recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

3.15. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or con-
structive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embody-
ing economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
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be made of the amount of the obligation.

3.16. Revenue
Revenue from the sales of goods is recognized when:

. There is transfer of significant risk and reward of ownership and related control
over goods

. the amount of revenue and cost incurred on transaction can be reliably measured;

. It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the
sale of goods in the ordinary course of the group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
sales/value-added tax, excise duty, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the group.

Where the buyer has a right of return, the company defers recognition of revenue until
the right to return has lapsed. However, where high volumes of sales are made to estab-
lished wholesale customers, revenue is recognized in the period where the goods are
delivered less an appropriate provision for returns based on past experience. The same
policy applies to warranties, provided the amount of revenue can be measured reliably
and it is probable that the company will receive any consideration, revenue for services
is recognized in the period in which they are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss on accrual basis.

3.17. Expenses
All expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss on accrual basis.

4. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with NFRS requires the
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions applying the accounting
policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses,
including contingencies and commitments. Due to the inherent uncertainty in making
estimates, actual results reported in future periods may differ from those estimates. The
estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on on-going basis based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revision to accounting estimates is
recognized in the period in which estimates are revised, if the revision affects only that
period; they are recognized in the period of revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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The significant judgements made by the management in applying the company’s
accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty in these financial
statements, which together are deemed critical to the company’s results and financial
position, are given in the respective sections of the notes wherever they have been
applied.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, howev-
er, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
control of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

In the process of applying the Entity’s accounting policies, management has made the
followings estimates, assumptions and judgements:

(a) Use of Fair Value as deemed cost at reporting date

Management has made a judgment to use fair value of property for land, building and
physical structures at the reporting dates. Other property, plant and equipment are mea-
sured at historical cost. The company has revalued and reassessed Land, Building and
Physical infrastructure from an independent valuator as on reporting date which has
been reflected in the financials statement of the company.

(b) Impairment of financial assets-Sundry Debtors

The management deems that all the outstanding receivable as on date of statement of
financial position (Ashad, 32 2082) are recoverable. No impairment has been made to
account receivables in the current year unless otherwise stated.

(¢) Actuarial Valuation

The measurement of defined benefits obligations and defined benefits contributions is
done as per the valuation made by actuary and such valuation shall be reassessed ev-
ery year.

The company has conducted actuary valuation as on reporting date which has been
reflected in the financials statement of the of the company.
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A..r. ASSOCIATES Firm Reglstrution No: 1062

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS PAN: 617956028

Kathmandu. Nepal

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

NEPAL LUBE OIL LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Nepal Lube Qil Limited (“the company”), which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), and the Statement of
Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material aspects the financial
position of the company as at Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), and its financial performance and the cash
flows for the year ended in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSA). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ICAN's
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of financial statements for the financial year ended on Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025). These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Auditor's Report NLOL (FY'2081/82) E-maill : CO.GIOSSOCIG'es@ng".Com Page 10f5
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AXZ. ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Kathmandu. Nepal

Firm Reglstration No: 1062
PAN: 617956028

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
1. Physical Verification and Asset Coding of [ - We reviewed the management's rationale for

Property, Plant, and Equipment (PPE) not conducting physical verification and

The company holds a significant amount of assessed any compensating controls in place

Property, Plant, and Equipment (PPE) on its to ensure the accuracy of PPE records.

balance sheel. However, during the audit, it [ - We performed allemalive audit procedures,

was noted that the physical verification of PPE including sample-based testing of PPE
had not been conducted, and asset coding had additions and disposals, to verify the existence
not been implemented. The lack of physical and accuracy of recorded assets.

verificaton and coding presents a risk of | - We conducted physical verification of sampled

misstatement in the financial statements as property, plant and equipment, after the

there may be unrecorded or inaccurately reporting date, reconciled the balances and
recorded assets, and the potential for existence ensured the assets exists in working condition
or completeness issues is increased. to derive economic value addition to the

- PPE represents a material balance in the company.
financial statements, and any | - We inspected key documents such as
misstatements could significantly impact purchase invoices, maintenance of records,
the company’s financial position. and other evidence supporting the existence

- The absence of periodic physical and condition of PPE.
verification increases the risk of erors, [ - We assessed the adequacy of management’s
loss, or misuse of assets, and it limits the intemal controls over PPE and asset tracking,
ability to detect impairments or unrecorded considering the lack of physical verification and
disposals. asset coding.

- Asset coding is important for tracking and | - We reviewed the company's depreciation
identifying individual assets; without this, policies and tested their application to ensure
there is a  heightened nsk of that assets were being depreciated
misclassification or incomplete records, appropriately in the absence of specific asset
which may lead to incorect depreciation or coding.
impairment calculations. - We evaluated the company's disclosures on

- The issue may also affect the accuracy of PPE in the financial statements to ensure they
insurance coverage and the adequacy of provide sufficient information regarding the
asset safeguarding controls. physical verification and asset coding

_processes, or lack thereof.
2. Accounts Receivables Our audit procedures included, among others:

As at the reporting date, the Company had | - Obtaining confirmations and reviewing legal

account receivables that were subject to corespondence regarding the status of

litigation. The litigation of the cases has been litigation and judgments delivered.

concluded by the competent authorities. - Inspecting evidence of realization of substantial

portion of such account receivables, including

The assessment of recoverability of receivables bank receipts and settlement documentation

under litigation involves judgment, including during the year.

evaluation of legal outcomes and potential | - Assessing the adequacy of management's

impairment under applicable financial reporting disclosures relating to litigation and receivable

standards. The favorable decisions and recoverability.

subsequent realization significantly affect the | Based on the audit procedures performed, we

balances of account receivables. Given the | found management’s assessment of recoverability

financial significance and judgment involved, | of receivables under litigation, and the related
we considered this area to be a key audit | disclosures, to be reasonable.

matter.

E-mall : ca.alassoclates@gmail.com
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A..t. ASSOCIATES Firm Registration No: 1062

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS PAN: 617956028

Kathmandu, Nepal

OTHER INFORMATION

The management is responsible for the other information presented in the Nepal Lube Oil Limited Annual
Report 2081/82 (2024-25) together with the Financial Statements. This report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report. Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibllity is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such intemal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

Auditor's Report NLOL (FY-2081/82) E-mall : ca.alassociates@gmail.com Page 3 of 5
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= Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s intemal control.

= FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a malerial uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concem.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control
that we identified during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemnance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor 's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter, or when, in extremely rare circumstances we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON THE OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

a. We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. The financial statements including the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash
Flows including a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory notes have
been prepared in all material respect in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2063,
and they are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company; and the accounts and
records of the Company are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

E-mall : ca.alassoclates@gmail.com
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A.I. ASSOCIATES Firm Registration No: 1062

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS PAN: 617956028

Kathmandu, Nepal

c. To the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our
audit, we observed that the business of the Company was conducted satisfactorily, and the
Company's transactions were found to be within the scope of its authority except reported in this
report.

d. We did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the board of
directors or any director or any office bearer of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions of
law except reported in this report or caused loss or damage to the Company or committed any
misappropriation of the funds of the Company.

e. We have not come across any accounting fraud, so as far as it appeared from our examination of the
books of accounts,

COP No: 1174
UDIN: 250928CA01723AjWXy
Date: 25 September 2025

E-mall : ca.alassoclates@gmall.com
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Statement of Financial Position As on Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Figures in NPR
Particulars Note No. 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets:
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 212,971,435 203,412,845
Capital Works in Progress 5 - 4,194,855
Right of Use Assets 5 1,893,200 2,876,848
Prepayments & Other Advances 7 - -
Deferred Tax Assets 8 - -
Total Non-Current Assets 214,864,635 210,484,548
Current Assets:
Assets Held For Sale 5 45,916,057 -
Inventories 9 279,557,344 218,033,268
Prepayments & Other Advances 7 54,662,001 39,618,690
Financial Assets 6
Trade & Other Receivables 445,760,880 368,647,059
Other Margins/ Deposits 6 1,314,929 1,362,638
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,116,102 23,086,264
Current Tax Assets 8 8,623,766 13,819,354
Total Current Assets 847,951,077 664,567,273
Total Assets 1,062,815,713 875,051,821
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share Capital 10 72,862,680 60,718,900
Retained Earnings 274,552,336 245,824,121
Other Component of Equity 76,096,737 69,191,211
Total Equity 423,511,753 375,734,232
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities:
Financial Liabilities 11
Loans and Borrowings -
Trade & Other Payables - -
Employee Benefits Liabilities 12 47,915,418 39,478,588
Lease Liability 13 1,565,862 1,705,208
Other Non-Current Liabilities 13.1 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 8 11,571,518 13,301,916
Total Non-current Liabilities 61,052,799 54,485,712
Current Liabilities:
Financial Liabilities 1
Loans and Borrowings 401,652,033 306,935,406
Trade & Other Payables 77,054,610 61,608,676
Employee Benefits Liabilities 12 24,004,541 29,194,251
Lease Liability 13 507,752 1,302,087
Other Current Liabilities 131 13,974,031 6,073,557
Provisions 14 61,058,194 39,717,900
Current Tax Liabilities 8 - -
Total Current Liabilities 578,251,161 444,831,876
Total Liabilities 639,303,960 499,317,589
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,062,815,713 875,051,821
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LUBE OIL
LIMITED

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
As on Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Figures in NPR

Particulars Note No. 32.03.2082 31.03.2081

Revenue From Operations 15 1,352,784,783 1,175,461,170
Cost of Operations/Sales 16 (947,675,952) (824,417,765)
Gross Profit 405,108,831 351,043,405
Other Operating Income 17 9,520,597 7,138,748
Selling & Distribution Expenses 20 (259,876,702) (217,630,348)
Administrative & General Expenses 21 (57,750,497) (41,119,215)
Other Operating Expenses 22 (7,048,622) (7,000,406)
Profit From Operations 89,953,607 92,432,183
Finance Cost 23 (33,119,567) (38,186,859)
Other Income 24 783,597 2,978,178
Profit Before Tax 57,617,637 57,223,502
Income Tax (Expenses)/Income: 8

- Current Tax (15,235,082) (9,530,407)

- Deferred Tax 3,485,432 (1,887,701)
Profit From Continuing Operations B 45,867,987 45,805,394
Profit/ (Loss) on Discontinued Operations(net of tax) - -
Net Profit for the Year 45,867,987 45,805,394
Other Comprehensive Income:
Other Comprehensive Income that is subsequently not reclassified to profit or loss

Actuary gain/(loss) on Defined Benefit Obligation 349,676 (11,585,584)

Revaluation Gain on Land & Building 8,310,883 12,035,951

-Income Tax Relating to Components of Other Comprehensive Income (1,755,033) (90,239)
Total Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax 6,905,526 360,128
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 52,773,513 46,165,523
Earning per Equity share

Basic (NPR) 25 62.95 62.87

Diluted (NPR) 25 62.95 62.87

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. As Per Our Report of Even Date

CA Ayush Nepal
A.l. & Associates

Karan Kumar Chaudhary
MD & CEO

Arun Kumar Chaudhary
Chairman

Dhruba Prashad Aryal

Bijay Bahadur Shrestha CA Nagendra Sah

Director Director Director
Shila Chaudhary Niranjan Neupane Anil Basnyat
Director Director Director

Ganga Raj Bhattarai
General Manager
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
Statement of Cash Flow
As on Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Figures in NPR

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit for the Year 45,867,987 45,805,394
Adjustment for: Non-Cash Items & Non-Operating items
Income Tax Expenses for the year 11,749,650 11,418,108
Depreciation/amortisation on PPE,ROU, Investment Property & Intangible Assets 17,421,879 7,311,572
Finance Cost on Leases 302,946 335,265
Revaluation loss charged to profit or loss 249,829 -
Finance Income (783,597) (2,978,178)
Finance Cost 28,762,748 34,329,340
Prior Year Adjustment (84,706) (2,301,222)
Adjustment for: Working Capital Changes except cash & Cash equivalent
Increase / Decrease in Inventories (61,524,076) (2,650,450)
Increase / Decrease in Prepayments & other Advances (15,043,310) (11,601,563)
Increase / Decrease in Trade & other receivables (77,113,821) 18,278,296
Increase / Decrease in Deposits 47,710 244 407
Increase/Decrease in Current Loan & Borrowings 54,523,435 (38,775,482)
Increase/Decrease in Trade & Other Payables 15,445,934 (1,950,282)
Increase/Decrease in Current Employee Benefits 3,596,796 7,086,807
Increase / Decrease in other Liabilities 7,900,474 (7,114,456)
Increase/Decrease in Provisions 21,340,294 (2,076,083)
Cash generated from Operations. 52,660,173 55,361,475
Finance Cost on Working Capital Loan (26,702,771) (34,329,340)
Payment of Rent (1,704,000) (1,400,000)
Income Tax Paid (11,911,834) (12,892,623)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (A) 12,341,567 6,739,511
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (59,192,597) (6,388,670)
Finance Income 783,597 2,978,178
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities (B) (58,409,000) (3,410,492)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Finance Cost Paid (2,059,977) -
Proceeds from loan & borrowings 43,995,131 -
Repayment of loan & borrowings (3,801,939) -
Dividend Paid (Both Interim & Final) (3,035,945) (2,350,470)
Dividend Tax Paid - -
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (C ) 35,097,270 (2,350,470)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (10,970,162) 978,550
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning 23,086,264 22,107,713
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end 12,116,102 23,086,264
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. As Per Our Report of Even Date
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
Statement of Change in Equity
As on Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Figures in NPR

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit for the Year 45,867,987 45,805,394
Adjustment for: Non-Cash Items & Non-Operating items
Income Tax Expenses for the year 11,749,650 11,418,108
Depreciation/amortisation on PPE,ROU, Investment Property & Intangible Assets 17,421,879 7,311,572
Finance Cost on Leases 302,946 335,265
Revaluation loss charged to profit or loss 249,829 -
Finance Income (783,597) (2,978,178)
Finance Cost 28,762,748 34,329,340
Prior Year Adjustment (84,706) (2,301,222)
Adjustment for: Working Capital Changes except cash & Cash equivalent
Increase / Decrease in Inventories (61,524,076) (2,650,450)
Increase / Decrease in Prepayments & other Advances (15,043,310) (11,601,563)
Increase / Decrease in Trade & other receivables (77,113,821) 18,278,296
Increase / Decrease in Deposits 47,710 244,407
Increase/Decrease in Current Loan & Borrowings 54,523,435 (38,775,482)
Increase/Decrease in Trade & Other Payables 15,445,934 (1,950,282)
Increase/Decrease in Current Employee Benefits 3,596,796 7,086,807
Increase / Decrease in other Liabilities 7,900,474 (7,114,456)
Increase/Decrease in Provisions 21,340,294 (2,076,083)
Cash generated from Operations. 52,660,173 55,361,475
Finance Cost on Working Capital Loan (26,702,771) (34,329,340)
Payment of Rent (1,704,000) (1,400,000)
Income Tax Paid (11,911,834) (12,892,623)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (A) 12,341,567 6,739,511
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (59,192,597) (6,388,670)
Finance Income 783,597 2,978,178
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities (B) (58,409,000) (3,410,492)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Finance Cost Paid (2,059,977)
Proceeds from loan & borrowings 43,995,131
Repayment of loan & borrowings (3,801,939) -
Dividend Paid (Both Interim & Final) (3,035,945) (2,350,470)
Dividend Tax Paid - -
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (C ) 35,097,270 (2,350,470)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (10,970,162) 978,550
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning 23,086,264 22,107,713
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end 12,116,102 23,086,264
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. As Per Our Report of Even Date
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LIMITED

Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

6 Financial Assets

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Cash & Cash Equivalents 12,116,102 23,086,264
Cash in hand 20,349 21,699
Balance with Banks 12,095,753 23,064,565
Trade & Other Receivables 445,760,380 368,647,059
Sundry Debtors 422422832 331,511,255
Under itigation 24,257,699 37,135,304
Allowaces on Debtors As per NFRS 9 (919,651)
Other Margins/ Deposits 1,314,929 1,362,638
LC Margin at Bank 1,314,929 1,362,638
Total 459,191,911 393,095,961
Trade receivables are placed as security against loan & borrowings
7 Prepayments & Other Advances
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Staff Welfare Deduction 87,600 77,723
Staff Advance 12,315,471 13,752,755
Prepaid Employee Benefits 1,364,641 -
Deposit against Adm.Review & Revenue Tribunal appeal 36,865,687 22,602,517
Other Advances and Deposits 2,230,216 2,230,216
Prepaid Expenses 1,798,385 955,478
Total 54,662,001 39,618,690
8 Taxations (Current/Deferred)
8.1 Current Tax Expenses/Income
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Taxable Profit for the Year 75,180,524 47,564,704
Current Tax for the Year () 15,235,082 9,530,407
Prior Years Income Taxes - -
Total Current Tax Expenses charges to Profit or loss 15,235,082 9,530,407

(*) Current tax has been calculated based on rate for special industry(manufacturing) and normal industry (trading) at the
rates of 20 percent and 25 percent respectively .
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

8.2 Current Tax liability/(Assets)

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Balance at the beginning of the period (13,819,354) (10,457,138)
Prior Year Assesment 1,872,341 966,956
Charged during the Year 15,235,082 9,530,407
Total Current Tax Liabilities 3,288,069 40,225
Current Tax Assets
Amount Paid During the Year (11,911,834) (13,859,580)
Current Tax Liabilities/(Assets) (8,623,766) (13,819,354)
Current Tax Assets has been offsetted to the current tax liability since payment is made on net basis.
8.3 Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets)
For the Year 2081-082
Temprorary Deferred Tax
Particulars Tax Base Carying Amount Taxable/(Deduictable) Liability/(Assets)
Differences *)
Property, Plant & Equipment
Depreciable 88,285,170 109,580,792 21,295,622 4,315,487
Non-Depreciable 748,827 149,306,700 148,557,873 30,104,756
Right of Use Assets - 1,893,200 1,893,200 383,651
Inventories 279,557,344 279,557,344 - -
Leave Payable - (11,496,513) (11,496,513) (2,329,730
Gratuity Payable (40,016,429) (40,016,429) (8,109,196)
Provisions (61,058,194) (61,058,194) (12,373,239)
Lease Liabilty (2,073,614) (2,073,614) (420,211)
Balance at Ashad 32, 2082 11,571,518
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2081 13,301,916
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) (1,730,398)
Recognized in Profit or Loss for the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (3,485,432)
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 1,755,033
Recognized in Equity for the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 -
For the Year 2080-081
Temprorary Deferred Tax
Particulars Tax Base Carying Amount Taxable/(Deduictable) Liability/(Assets)
Differences (*)
Property, Plant & Equipment
Depreciable 50,653,950 65,505,605 14,851,654 2,975,784
Non-Depreciable 748,827 142,102,095 141,353,268 28,322,559
Inventories 218,033,268 218,033,268 - -
Leave Payable - (9,260,345) (9,260,345) (1,855,469)
Gratuity Payable (40,838,983) (40,838,983) (8,182,793)
Provisions - (39,717,900) (39,717,900) (7,958,165)
Balance at Ashad 31, 2081 13,301,916
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2080 11,323,977
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) 1,977,940
Recognized in Profit or Loss for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 1,887,701
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 90,239
Recognized in Equity for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 -

(*) Deferred tax has been calculated based on rate for special industry(manufacturing) and normal industry (trading) at the rates of 20 percent and 25 percent respectively
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

Inventories
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Trading/Manufacturing Goods
Raw Materials 114,122,315 103,872,586
Finished Goods 157,695,920 112,073,768
Spare Parts 7,739,108 2,086,913
Total (A) 279,557,344 218,033,268
Share Capital
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Number NPR Number NPR
Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each
Authorized Share Capital 1,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000 100,000,000
Issued & Fully Paid
At the Beginning of the Year 607,189 60,718,900 485,149 48,514,900
Bonus Issues during the Year 122,040 12,204,000
Total 607,189 60,718,900 607,189 60,718,900
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Number NPR Number NPR
Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each
Per share Rs. 100.00 each 168,361 16,836,100 168,361 16,836,100
(i) Bonus share 34,561 Nos 34,561 3,456,100 34,561 3,456,100
(i) Bonus share 65,503 Nos 65,503 6,550,300 65,503 6,550,300
(ii) Bonus share 29,107 Nos. 29,107 2,910,700 29,107 2,910,700
(iii) Bonus share 90,053 Nos. 90,053 9,005,300 90,053 9,005,300
(iv) Bonus share 97,564 Nos. 97,564 9,756,400 97,564 9,756,400
(v) Bonus share 122,040 Nos. 122,040 12,204,000 122,040 12,204,000
(vi) Bonus share 121,438 Nos. 121,438 12,143,780 - -
Total 728,627 72,862,680 607,189 60,718,900
Financial Liabilities
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Borrowings from Bank 401,652,033 306,935,406
Over Draft Loan 44,989,384 37,253,406
Trust Receipt Loan 131,422,000 139,682,000
Demand Loan 182,400,000 130,000,000
Letter of Credit 2,647,457 -
Vehicle Loan(Short Term Loan) 36,253,113
Fixed Assets EMI Loan Alc 3,940,079 -
Trade & Other Paybles 77,054,610 61,608,676
Trade Payables 76,081,559 61,162,707
Other Payables 973,051 445,969
Total 478,706,643 368,544,082
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements

(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

Employee Benefits Liabilities

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Defined Benefit Obligation
Gratuity Payable 40,016,429 40,838,983
Defined Contirbution Scheme
Providend Fund Payable 4,219 123,787
Scoial Security Fund 298,690 620,582
CIT Payable 347,534 247,854
Other Employee Benefits Payable
Leave Payable 11,496,513 9,260,345
Staff Bonus Payable 6,481,626 6,422,391
Salary Payable 517,194 777,251
Other Staff Payables (Incentives to Staff) 12,757,754 10,381,646
Total 71,919,959 68,672,839
Categorized as:
Current 24,004,541 29,194,251
Non- Current 47,915,418 39,478,588
Total 71,919,959 68,672,839
Disclosure Related to Employment Benefit Liabilities
Gratuity
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 40,838,983 31,092,845
Net Current Service Cost 2,082,697 2,140,428
Past Service Cost (1,146,074) -
Interest Cost on Defined Benefit Obligation 3,236,771 2,506,471
Actuarial (Gain)/Loses - Experience Adjustment (349,676) 11,585,584
Benefits Paid (4,646,272) (6,486,345)
Losses/Gain on Curtailment Settlements - -
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period 40,016,429 40,838,983
Reconcilition of Statement of Financial Position Amount
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Balance at the Begining of the Period 40,838,983 31,092,845
Total Charge Recognized in P &L 4,173,394 4,646,899
Total Remeasurement Recognized in OCI (349,676) 11,585,584
Benefit Paid by Company During the Year (4,646,272) (6,486,345)
Balance at the End of the Period 40,016,429 40,838,983
Current / Non-Current Bifurcation
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Current 2,708,437 9,749,730
Non Current 37,307,992 31,089,253
Liabilitiy Recognized in the Statement of Financial Position 40,016,429 40,838,983
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Kathmandu, Nepal

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(Al Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars

32.03.2082

31.03.2081

Opening Plan Assets

Employers Contribution

Benefits Paid

Actuarial (Gain)/Loses - Experience Adjustment

Closing plan assets at the end of the Period

Financial Assumption Used to Determine the Defined Benefit Obligation
Discount Rate p.a. 9.00%
Salary Escalation Rate p.a. 6.67%

Financial Assumption Used to Determine the Profit & Loss Charge

Discount Rate 9.00%
Salary Escalation Rate 6.67%
Expected Return on Plan Assets N.A

Demographic Assumption Used to Determine the Defined Benefit Obligation

Withdrawl Rate 5%
Nepali Assured
Mortality Rate Lives
Mortality 2009
Retirement Age 60 Years

Expected Future Cash Flows

Year Cash Flow

2026

2027
2028-2030

Breakup of Actuarial (Gain) / Losses

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars

Previous Year

Current Year

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation
Service Cost

Interest Cost

Actual Plan participant Contribution

Total Actuarial (Gain) / Losses

a.Effect of Change in Financial Assumption
b.Effect of Change in Demographic Assumption
c. Experience (Gain)/ Losses

Benefit Paid

Past Service Cost

Loss/(Gain) on Curtailment Settlement

40,838,983
936,623
3,236,771

(349,676)

(349,676)
(4,646,272)

31,002,845
2,140,428
2,506,471

11,585,584

11,585,584
(6,486,345)

Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period

40,016,429

40,838,983
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)
Leave Encashment

AT ogd NI [,

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Casual Leave - -
Home Leave 5,979,776 4,675,093
Sick Leave 5,516,737 4,585,252
Total 11,496,513 9,260,345
Reconcilition of Amount Recognized in Statement of Financial Position
Particulars 32.03.2082
Casual Leave Home Leave Sick Leave
Amount at the Beginning of the Period 4,675,093 4,585,252
Total Expenses/(income) Recognized in P&L 1,354,867 995,740
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss Recognized in P&L 137,869 110,562
Benefit Payout (188,053) (174,817)
Liabilities at the End of the Period 5,979,776 5,516,737
Current/ Non Current Bifurcation
Particulars 32.03.2082
Casual Leave Home Leave Sick Leave
Current Benefit Obligation 463,795 425,292
Non-Current Benefit Obligation 5,515,981 5,091,445
Total Liabilities 5,979,776 5,516,737
Particulars 31.03.2081
Casual Leave Home Leave Sick Leave
Amount at the Beginning of the Period 59,838 4,459,892 7,939,811
(59,838) (722,030 781,868
Total Expenses/(income) Recognized in P&L - 877,732 1,247,391
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss Recognized in P&L 763,341 (3,741,519)
Benefit Payout (703,842) (1,642,299)
Liabilities at the End of the Period 4,675,093 4,585,252
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)
Current/ Non Current Bifurcation

Particulars A
Casual Leave Home Leave Sick Leave

Current Benefit Obligation 470,808 400,203
Non-Current Benefit Obligation 4,204,285 4,185,049
Total Liabilities 4,675,093 4,585,252
Actuarial Valuation Assumptions Used for Valuation

Particulars Eali40e

Casual Leave Home Leave Sick Leave

Economic Assumptions
Discount Rate 9% 9% 9%
Salary Escalation Rate 6.67% 6.67% 6.67%

Demographic Assumptions

Mortality

Nepali Assured Lives

Nepali Assured Lives

Nepali Assured Lives

Mortality 2009 Mortality 2009 Mortality 2009

Employee Turnover / Withdrawl Rate 5% 5% 5%
Leave Availment Ratio 1% 1% 1%
Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years 60 Years
Lease Liability

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Non-Current
Lease Liability-Non Current 1,565,862 1,705,208

Total 1,565,862 1,705,208
Current
Lease Liability- Current 507,752 1,302,087
Total 507,752 1,302,087

Reconcilition of Statement of Financial Position Amount

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Opening balance 3,007,295 -
Initial Reconition 467,373 4,072,030
Finance Cost 302,946 335,265
Lease Paymnet (1,704,000) (1,400,000)
Closing balance 2,073,614 3,007,295
Current / Non-Current Bifurcation

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Current Benefit Obligation 1,565,862 1,302,087
Non Current Benefit Obligation 507,752 1,705,208
Liabilitiy Recognized in the Statement of Financial Position 2,073,614 3,007,295
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)
13.1 Other Liabilities

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Non-Current
Total
Current
TDS Payable 3,150,072 4,901,543
Interest Payable - 705,888
Audit Fee Payable 295,500 295,500
Net Value Added Tax Payables 10,528,459 170,626
VAT Payables 175,881,036 152,601,081
VAT Receivables (165,352,577) (152,430,455)
Total 13,974,031 6,073,557
14 Provisions
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Provsion for CSR Expenses 1,160,011 578,015
Provision for Expenses Payables 7,385,683 12,169,282
Provision for Selling & Distribution Expenses 52,512,500 26,970,603
Total 61,058,194 39,717,900
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NEPAL
LUBE OIL
LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

15 Revenue from Operations
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Sale of goods 1,359,168,260 1,184,031,438
Less: Sales Return (6,383,477) (8,570,269)
Total 1,352,784,783 1,175,461,170
16 Cost of Operations/Sales
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Opening Stock of goods 218,033,268 215,382,818
Purchase during the period 951,725,215 784,036,743
Direct & Manufacturing Expenses (16.1) 57,474,812 43,031,471
Less: Closing Stock of goods (279,557,344) (218,033,268)
Total 947,675,952 824,417,765
16.1 Direct & Manufacturing Expenses
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Depreciation & Amortization 9,174,039 3,361,944
Equipment Calibration Charge 18,221 45,050
Machinery Repair & Maintenance 373,121 435,255
Renewal Charges - 30,000
Royalty Expenses 21,772,807 15,395,515
Travelling Expenses 307,999 120,000
Production Cost -
Electricity, Fuel, Water 2,661,900 2,333,314
Plant Insurance 2,375,946 2,265,486
Lab Chemical 125,025 13,048
Telephone Expenses 21,541 21,513
Printing & Stationary 43,053 -
Production Employee Benefit Expenses 20,601,160 19,010,345
Total 57,474,812 43,031,471
17 Other Operating Income
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Interest Income 4,298,013 6,825,393
Miscellaneous income 5,222,584 313,355
Total 9,520,597 7,138,748
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Depreciation & Amortization

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 17,421,879 7,311,572
Total 17,421,879 7,311,572
Alloacated to
Administrative & General Expenses 8,247,840 3,949,628
Selling & Distribution Expenses - -
Manufacturing Expenses & Cost of Sales 9,174,039 3,361,944
Total 17,421,879 7,311,572
Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Short-Term Employee Benefits
Wages & Salaries 42,882,649 32,898,404
Allowances 26,477,868 23,035,662
Insurance & Medical Expenses 4,704,621 4,808,152
Staff Bonus Expenses - 6,422,391
Labour Welfare & Uniform Expenses 321,040 466,105
Gratuity Cost -
Defined Contribution 1,843,482 2,633,190
Defined Benefits 5,260,224 7,756,247
Total Employee Benefit Expenses 81,489,883 78,020,151
Selling & Distribution Expenses
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Advertisement & Event Expenses 19,024,113 6,287,546
Wall Painting & Flex printing expenses 8,128,922 10,922,054
Gift and Present Distribution Expenses 933,450 299,120
Marketing Staff Travelling Expenses 12,441,076 8,527,513
Telephone, Printing, Stationary etc of Marketing 318,190 202,474
SSF & Medical Expenses of Marketing 2,213,786 2,015,924
Sales Incentive of Marketing 10,202,500 8,232,505
Scheme Expenses (Retailer & PGM) 65,425,122 46,307,188
Lubricants Outward transportation expenses 28,428,445 19,652,239
Service Camp Expenses - 570,502
Third party Testing Expenses - 286,800
Testing Fee 796,810 238,087
Local level sport branding expenses - 5,396,430
Sales Target Bonus (Distributors) 43,229,868 34,865,322
Interest Expenses 7,574,655 7,119,591
Market promotion expenses 26,241,731 27,437,881
Industrial, Distributors, Retailer Meet Expenses 6,575,362 6,833,902
Training Expenses 389,405 339,706
Leakage Expenses - -
Private Garage Mechanics Meet Expenses - 7,849,110
Repair & Maintenance Selling & Distribution 27,026
Sales & Marketing Employee Benefits Expenses 27,926,241 24,246,456
Total 259,876,702 217,630,348
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

21 Administrative and General Expenses

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081

Depreciation & Amortization 8,247,840 3,949,628
House/Godown Rent 25,890 256,522
Repair & Maintenance (Building) - -
Electricity, Fuel & Water Expenses 820,565 755,060
Vehicle Fuel Expenses 1,128,719 876,395
Repair & Maintenance (Vehicle) 130,773 -
Audit Fee 300,000 300,000
Other Certifications 399,100 -
Legal Court Fee & Other legal expenses 17,000 442,578
Right Share Issue & Rating expenses 582,136 -
Property Tax & Other Taxes 826,424 -
Board Meeting Allowance 1,298,303 1,454,796
Bank charge & Commission 948,301 660,462
Annual General Meeting Expenses 800,105 661,163
Repair Plant & Machinery of Amlekhgunj 151,366 94,471
Insurance Expenses (Staff & office assets) - -
Communication (Postage,Courier, Telephone, Internet) 443,946 333,670
Printing & Stationary Expenses 415,021 421,613
Notice Publication expenses - -
Charity & Donation 235,000 734,801
Books & Magzine Expenses - -
Professional Fees 510,000 150,000
Uniform Expenses - 75,214
Guest Entertainment & Fooding Expenses 71,909 38,330
Mics. Expenses 285,639 471,611
Revaluation loss charged to profit or loss 249,829 -
Tender form purchase expenses 36,000 5,000
Nepse, RTS, Security Board, NFRS, Share Reg. Expenses 322,760 59,000
Advertisement Expenses 8,765 4,500
Annual renewal Expenses 641,744 275,380
Puja Expenses 205,763 211,955
Office & Factory Tea & food Expenses 606,260 563,027
Consumable Goods 221,475 154,724
Travelling Expenses 1,364,986 1,014,051
Security Guard Expenses 1,932,743 1,740,000
Board of Directors' Expenses 640,000 1,053,000
Employee Benefit Expenses 32,962,483 24,362,264
Allowances on Debtors (NFRS 9) 919,651

Total 57,750,497 41,119,215
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Other Operating Expenses

Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
CSR Expenses 581,996 578,015
Staff Bonus 6,466,626 6,422,391
Total 7,048,622 7,000,406
Finance Cost
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Interest on Borrowings 28,762,748 34,329,340
Finance Cost
Lease Liabilities 302,946 335,265
Employee Benefits Liabilities 4,053,873 3,522,254
Total 33,119,567 38,186,859
Other Income/Gains
Particulars 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Actuarial Gain on Other Long term Employee Benefit (Home &Sick Leave) - 2,978,178
Finance Income on Staff Loan 783,597 -
Total 783,597 2,978,178
AT ogd NI [,
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Note to the Financial Statements
(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

25 Earning Per Share

Particulars 32.03.2082 ?;::;;221) 31.03.2081
Profit from Continuing Operations 45,867,987 45,805,394 45,805,394
Profit/ (Loss) on Discontinued Operations(net of tax) - - -
Profit for the Year (A) 45,867,987 45,805,394 45,805,394
Weighted Average No. of Shares
No of Shares at the Beginning of the period 607,189 607,189 485,149
Weighted Average No. of Shares Issued during the Year - -
Bonus Shares Issued During the Year 121,438 121,438 122,040
Total Weighted Average No. of Shares(B) 728,627 728,627 607,189
Adjustment for potential Shares
No of Potential Equity Shares - - -
Total Weighted Average No. of Shares for Diluted EPS (C) 728,627 728,627 607,189
Earning per Share (NPR
a) Basic EPS 62.95 62.87 75.44
b) Diluted EPS 62.95 62.87 75.44

26 Disclosures Related to Financial Instruments Risk

Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Entity’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Entity’s operations. The Entity’s principal financial assets include trade receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations. The
Entity also holds investments in debt and equity instruments .transactions.

The Entity is exposed to_market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Entity’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Entity’s senior management
is supported by a financial risk advisors that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Entity. The financial risk advisors provides
assurance to the Entity’s senior management that the Entity’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Entity’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that
have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Entity’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.
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Note to the Financial Statements

Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

(All Amounts are stated in NPR, unless otherwise specifically stated)

27 Related Party Transactions
Major Key Related Parties: Entity

Rastrya Beema Company Ltd.
Himal Cement Company Ltd
National Trading Company Ltd
Rastrya Banijya Bank Ltd

Share Holder
Share Holder
Share Holder
Share Holder

Name of Parties Nature of Relati ip
ABB Investment Pvt Ltd Holder
Nepal Oil Corporation Holder

Major Key Related Parties: Natural Person

Name of Parties Nature of Relationships Positions
Arun Kumar Chaudhary Key Management Personnel Chairman
Bijaya Bahadur Shrestha Key Management Personnel Directors
Representative- Nepal Oil Corporation Key Management Personnel Directors
Company Ltd. Key Management Personnel Directors
Nirajan Neupane Key Management Personnel Directors
Anil Basnyat Key Management Personnel Directors
Shila Chaudhary Key Management Personnel Directors
Karan Kumar Chaudhary Key Management Personnel MD/CEO

Ganga Raj Bhattarai

Key Management Personnel

General Manager

Related Parties listed above does not include close family members of Key Management Personnel, controlling person and person with significant influence unless there is material transaction with them.

The following table provides the total amount of sales,purchase and balances that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year.

Particulars Sales to Related Parties Purchase from Related Parties Receivables Balance Payable Balance
32.03.2082 31.03.2081 32.03.2082 31.03.2081 32.03.2082 31.03.2081 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
a) ALTPVTLTD 11,945,362.84 12,888,323.61 - - 2,665,420.42 685,652.49 - -
Total 11,945,362.84 12,888,323.61 - - 2,665,420.42 685,652.49 - -

Related Parties Transactions

Goods are sold based on the price lists in force and terms that would be available to third parties.

Payable at year end

Interest Income

Receivable at year end

Particulars
2081-082 2080-081 2081-082 2080-081 2081-082 2080-081
a) its Parent Entity - - - - R R
b) Its Subsidiaries - - - - - -
NLOL Synergy 580,000.00
NLOL Energy 130,000.00
c) Key Management Personnel - - - - - -
Total - - - - 710,000.00 -

There is no loan and advance to related parties during the above mentioned fiscal year

t Personnel Comp

Key M

Key management includes the Board of Directors (executive and non-executive), all members of Entity Management and the Company Secretary. The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee

services is shown below:

" 32.03.2082 31.03.2081
Banticilas Directors MD & CEO Key Manager Directors G.mM Key Manager
Short-term Employee Benefits
Remuneration Benefits and Allowances 1,818,303.38 6,880,000.00 27,246,005.21 2,376,529.41 6,627,160.28 21,857,473.34
Total 1,818,303.38 6,880,000.00 27,246,005.21 2,376,529.41 6,627,160.28 21,857,473.34

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management personnel.

28 Contingencies
Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are potential future cash out flows, where the likelihood of payment is considered more than remote, but is not considered probable or cannot be measured reliably.

29 Events After the end of the Reporting Date

There are no significant events after reporting period.
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
Report to Company Registrar’s Office for Fiscal Year 2081/82 as per Companies Act, 2063, Section 78

Approved by the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 2082.06.01

A)

B)

C

D)

E)

F)

G)

H)

J)

K)

L)

Number of Shares Allotted,

[ Particulars

I Nt

| Number of ordinary shares allotted

728,627 |

Number of Shares Paid- up or remaining unpaid among the shares allotted,

Particulars

Number

Number of ordinary shares paid up
Number of ordinary shares unpaid up

728,627

Total

728,627

Details of the Directors, Managing Director, Auditor, Chief Executive, Manager along with the Remuneration, Allowance and Other Benefits paid to them,

Particulars Meeting Fees R ation & Allowances
Chif Executive Officer, Schedule | & II 105,882 6,880,000
Board Of Directors, Schedule Il 917,647 520,000
Managing Directors and Managers, Schedule 1& Il 105,882 27,246,005
Total 1,129,412 34,646,005
Details of Auditor
Particulars Name Audit Fee (NPR.)
Statutory Audit A.l. Associates, Chartered Accountants 300,000
Tax Audit A.l. Associates, Chartered Accountants 84,000
Corporate Governance Certification A.l. Associates, Chartered Accountants 33,000
Section 78 Certification A.l. Associates, Chartered Accountants 33,000
Total 450,000

Name of Person/s or Organization /s that has purchased 5%

or more of the paid up Share Capital of the

Company and details of Shares or Debentures held by them,

Share Holder's Name No of Share Value (NPR.) %
ABB Investment Pvt. Ltd. 290,850 29,085,000 39.92%
Nepal Oil Corporation 105,625 10,562,520 14.50%
Arun Kumar Chaudhary 37,481 3,748,080 5.14%
Karan Kumar Chaudhary 41,378 4,137,840 5.68%
Total amount realised from the sale of shares along with details of new shares andlor debentures purchased/ issued during the concerned financial year, None

Amounts owed to the Company by the Directors or core shareholders or their close relatives, None

Amounts paid or payable against sale of shares or any other work done, None

Amounts taken as loan from banks and financial institutions along withithe amount remaining payable as principal and interest, 401,652,033
Details of amounts receivable or claims for payment received or details of law suits that have been filed or is continuing in this regard,

Person / Party Particulars

| Various Debtors | Debtors Amounting to Rs. 24,257,699

Number of employees working in the management, other levels or as labours in the Company (During the Year),

Particulars Number
Management Level 13
Other Level 62
Total 75

Number of foreign employees working in the management and other levels along with the remuneration, allowances and other benefits paid to them None

Details of any agreement made between the company and any foreign company or individualls, regarding investment management, technical service, or any other subject for more
than one year, alongwith the amounts paid during the financial year as dividend, commission, fees, charges, royalty, etc. as per the agreement,

Party Name Project Payment During F/Y 2081/82 (US$) Pa’;’;‘;‘;;?;"::‘%m
GOIL INTERNATIONAL LLC 161,280 21,772,807
Total 161,280 21,772,807
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Nepal Lube Oil Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal
Report to Company Registrar’s Office for Fiscal Year 2081/82 as per Companies Act, 2063, Section 78

M) Details of the Administrative Expenses incurred during the Financial Year,

Particulars Amount

Depreciation & Amortization 8,247,840
House/Godown Rent 25,890
Repair & Maintenance (Building) -
Electricity, Fuel & Water Expenses 820,565
Vehicle Fuel Expenses 1,128,719
Repair & Maintenance (Vehicle) 130,773
Audit Fee 300,000
Other Certifications 399,100
Legal Court Fee & Other legal expenses 17,000
Right Share Issue & Rating expenses 582,136
Property Tax & Other Taxes 826,424
Board Meeting Allowance 1,298,303
Bank charge & Commission 948,301
Annual General Meeting Expenses 800,105
Repair Plant & Machinery of Amlekhgunj 151,366
Insurance Expenses (Staff & office assets) -
Communication (Postage,Courier, Telephone, Internet) 443,946
Printing & Stationary Expenses 415,021
Notice Publication expenses -
Charity & Donation 235,000
Books & Magzine Expenses -
Professional Fees 510,000
Uniform Expenses -
Guest Entertainment & Fooding Expenses 71,909
Mics. Expenses 285,639
Revaluation loss charged to profit or loss 249,829
Tender form purchase expenses 36,000
Nepse, RTS, Security Board, NFRS, Share Reg. Expenses 322,760
Advertisement Expenses 8,765
Annual renewal Expenses 641,744
Puja Expenses 205,763
Office & Factory Tea & food Expenses 606,260
Consumable Goods 221,475
Travelling Expenses 1,364,986
Security Guard Expenses 1,932,743
Board of Directors' Expenses 640,000
Employee Benefit Expenses 32,962,483
Allowances on Debtors (NFRS 9) 919,651

Total 57,750,497

N Details of Unclaimed Dividend by Shareholders:
Particulars Amount (NPR.)

Unclaimed Dividend for FY 2069/70 to FY 2077/78 2,681,662
Unclaimed Dividend for FY 2078/79 107,784
Unclaimed Dividend for FY 2079/80 162,076
Unclaimed Dividend for FY 2081/82 236,363

Total 3,187,885

0) Any other matters.

We declare that Company has followed the provisions of Company Act, 2063 and other Laws in effect.

For and on behalf of the Board

CA Ayush Nepal
Partner
A.l. Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date: 2082.06.01 UDIN:
Place: Kathmandu
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PARTNER’S MEET 2081

NADA AUTO SHOW 2024
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BRAND BUILDING ACTIVITIES
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FREE SERVICE CAMP

SWARAJ TRACTOR

WATER HEATER S LTR.
THURMAS 3 LTH.
RICE COOKER 2 LTR.
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TIE UP WITH JANAKPUR BOLTS
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SPONSORSHIP
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MARIO GRASSROOT U-11 INTER
ACADEMY FUTSAL TOURNAMENT 2081

TITLE SPONSOR

Nepal Lube Oil Limited (NLOL)
The off c

manufacturing
market. Esta
tradamark ag
formally In

msee of Guif Oil International, responsible
d distributing Gulf Lubricants in the Nepa

orporation Limited, NLOL was

, 1984, under the Nepal Company

AD). Proudly, NLOL was one of the first four
Nepal to achieve 150 9000 Quality Management
rtification. Today, NLOL proudly offers a comprehensive
range of Gulf Lubricants, EV Charger and Battaries, adhering to
international standards, in the Nepalese market.

28TH & 30TH OF CHAITRA | 9813352535

VISIONOVA FUTSAL
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N EPAL Nepal Lube Oil Limited
Amlekhgunj, Bara, Nepal, Tel:+977-53-570104
LUBE OIL Corporate Office: Tripureshwor, Kathmandu, Nepal

P.O. Box: 1916, Tel: +977-1-5351061/62, 5901063
LIMITED Email: nlol@nepallubeoil.com, Web: www.nepallubeoil.com
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